
Page 1 of 3 

 

 City Council Meeting and Workshop 

June 2, 2014 

Agenda 
                                    
 
 
                                                                             
 

5:30 P.M.  Workshop  

A. Lewiston Auburn Economic Growth Council (LAEGC) proposal – Clint Deschene (30 minutes)   

B. Green and Healthy Homes initiative – Shanna Rogers (20 minutes)  

C. Capital Improvement Program (CIP) – Clint Deschene (30 minutes)  

 

7:00 P.M.  City Council Meeting - Roll call votes will begin with Councilor LaFontaine 

 

Pledge of Allegiance   

I. Consent Items – All items listed with an asterisk (*) are considered as routine and will be approved in one motion.   

There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Councilor or citizen so requests.  If requested, the item 

will be removed from the consent agenda and considered in the order it appears on the agenda.   

 

1. Order 42-06022014*  
Nominating Jonathan LaBonté and appointing City Manager Clint Deschene as the MMA LPC 

(Maine Municipal Association’s Legislative Policy Committee) members for the 2014-2016 

term. 

 

2. Order 43-06022014*  
Accepting the transfer of Forfeiture Asset (William Tardif). 

 

II.    Minutes   

 May 19, 2014 Regular Council Meeting. 

III.   Reports  

Mayor’s Report  

 

City Manager’s Report  

 Edward Little Statue Update  

 FY15 Budget Impact Update 

 Committee Reports 

 Transportation 

o Androscoggin Transportation Resource Center – Mayor LaBonte 

o Lewiston Auburn Transit – Councilor Gerry 

o Airport, Railroad – Councilor Hayes 

o Bike-Ped Committee – Councilor Lee 

 Housing 

o Community Development Block Grant, Neighborhood Stabilization Program, 

Auburn Housing Authority – Councilor Gerry 

 Economic Development 

o L-A Economic Growth Council, Auburn Business Development Corporation  

 Education 

o Auburn School Committee – Councilor LaFontaine 

 



Au b u r n  C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  &  W o r k s h o p  
 June 2, 2014 

 

Page 2 of 3 

 

o Auburn Public Library – Councilor LaFontaine 

o Great Falls TV – Councilor Young  

 Environmental Services 

o Auburn Water District, Auburn Sewerage District – Councilor Crowley 

o Mid-Maine Waste Action Corp. – Councilor Walker 

 Recreation 

o Recreation and Special Events Advisory Board – Councilor Crowley 

 Public Safety 

o LA 911 – Councilor Walker 

             City Councilors’ Reports               

IV.    Communications, Presentations and Recognitions  

 Communication – The Liberty Festival Mass Gathering application 

 

V.     Open Session – Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related to 

                                              City business which is not on this agenda.  Time limit for open sessions, by ordinance, is 45 minutes.    

 

VI.    Unfinished Business  

 

1. Ordinance 03-05192014  
Approving the zoning text amendment to the Agricultural and Resource Protection Zone 

(ZOMA 1180-2013). Public hearing and second reading. 

 

2. Resolve 06-05052014  
Adopting the Appropriations Resolve for Fiscal Year 2015, second reading. 

 

VII.     New Business 

 

3. Order 44-06022014  
Approving the liquor license for The Penalty Box. Public hearing. 

 

4. Ordinance 04-06022014  
Approving the Spring Street zoning amendment. Public hearing and first reading. 

 

5. Resolve 07-05052014  
Supporting the Community Fundraising Campaign to acquire the historic 1915 Bells of St. Louis 

Church. 

  

VIII. Executive Session 

 Discussion regarding economic development (TIF), pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C). 

 

IX.  Open Session - Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related to 

                                             City business which is not on this agenda. 

 

X. Adjournment 

 
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive 

session.  Executive sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential 



Au b u r n  C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  &  W o r k s h o p  
 June 2, 2014 

 

Page 3 of 3 

 

until they become a matter of public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion 

must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be 

scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The 

only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 

405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 

 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, 

disciplining, resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the 

investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's reputation 

or the individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 

(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that 

person be conducted in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  

(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be 

present. 

This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  

 

B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the 

cost of whose education is paid from public funds, as long as:  

(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an 

executive session if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  

 

C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property or 

interests therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would 

prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 

D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named 

before the body or agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees 

may be open to the public if both parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 

E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or 

contemplated litigation, settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant to 

the code of professional responsibility clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place the 

State, municipality or other public agency or person at a substantial disadvantage;  

 

F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public to 

those records is prohibited by statute; 

 

G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment 

purposes; consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content 

of an examination; and review of examinations with the person examined; and  

 

H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 

4452, subsection 1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that 

pending enforcement matter.  



City Council 

Workshop Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan       Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety      Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Lewiston-Auburn Economic Growth Council (LAEGC) proposal  

 

Information: The process to review a new strategy is completed by the Consultant.  A copy of this is 

attached.   

 

BUDGET Component:  The allocation in the budget recommended by the City Manager is $160,410.  It 

has been recommended, but not acted on it yet to reduce it by $15,792 to new amount of $144,618.  Jim 

Damicis the consultant does express a concern that funding levels are low.   

 

The City Manager continues to request and urge support from Lewiston and the Growth Council.  Many 

budgets are being drastically impacted on both cities.  Auburn has worked in cooperation with Lewiston on 

Intergovernmental agencies.  However, the only item the City Manager is recommending is for one year 

during the new implementation of the new scope of services in this reduction.  At this point no reductions 

are being proposed by the LAEGC board, LAEGC staff, or the City of Lewiston. 

 

Although, staff vacancies appear to allow a reduced budget to be manageable, a common concern is 

appropriately funding during a transitional period.   

 

It is also recommended that the final approval and execution occur at a joint meeting of both cities. 

 

Financial: Budget 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Discussion 

 

Previous Meetings and History: N/A 

 

Attachments: New Scope per consultant process. 

Council Workshop Date:  June 2, 2014 Item  A 

Author:   Clinton Deschene 



Lewiston-Auburn Economic Growth Council Scope of Services –Final – May 19, 2014    Page - 1 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SERVICES PLAN FOR 

 LEWISTON-AUBURN ECONOMIC GROWTH COUNCIL  

FINAL REPORT – May 19, 2014 

INTRODUCTION 

The cities of Lewiston and Auburn have worked with the Lewiston-Auburn Economic Growth Council 

(LAEGC) to develop a scope of services for the continuation of joint economic development services.  

Camoin Associates was hired by the two cities and the LAEGC to work with the parties involved, along 

with an Advisory Committee to develop a scope of services for LAEGC that could be adopted and funded 

by the two cities as well as provide recommendations for the economic development service delivery  

going forward.  The Joint Economic Development Services Advisory Committee met four times as part of 

this process and developed this final draft which includes a recommended scope of services to help guide 

the work of LAEGC and recommendations on how the Cities and LAEGC should approach economic 

development going forward. 

GUIDING PRINCIPLES AND APPROACH 

The following principles provide guidance for a scope of services and economic development system 

going forward: 

 Historically L/A has been a model for collaborative economic development and has had past 

success – Collaboration must continue!  It will lead to greater impact and efficiencies compared 

to the two cities going it alone.  The bottom line is that the Cities cannot fiscally afford going it 

alone in providing the resources to support modern day economic development functions and 

services. 

 Economic development and the economy has become complex – more issues, more stakeholders, 

global economy, greater expectations, a demand for openness and transparency, and a demand for 

measurement, etc…  the LAEGC and the Cities must become more adaptive to rapid change 

and working within an environment of constant unknowns and limited predictability. 

 Transformation and change takes time and commitment.  There is no overnight silver bullet.  

Success requires patience and commitment to on-going capacity building and learning.   

 The Cities and LAEGC may have to do less in some areas than in the past to allow for adaption to 

new models and services – thus creating “space” for adapting to change, working on the process 

of collaboration and networks with new stakeholders and interests, and updating operational 

processes and procedure.  Through all of this and into the future there must be adequate, 

consistent, capacity (dollars, staffing, and resources) to run a high-performing organization. 

Throughout the process of developing a scope of services much discussion focused on collaboration.  The 

Advisory Group felt it important to understand what is meant by collaboration.  Through the LAEGC the 

Cities seek to approach and deliver economic development collaboratively, though networking, 

coordination, and cooperation are all needed to build and implement a collaborative approach.  This 

following graphic helps demonstrate the model: 



Lewiston-Auburn Economic Growth Council Scope of Services –Final – May 19, 2014    Page - 2 
 

 

  Source:  http://21stcenturylibrary.com/2010/09/ 

Current Economic Development Staffing/Capacity in the Cities 

The two cities have very little staff/resources for carrying-out economic development functions.  Current 

staffing is as follows:  

 Auburn:  2 full-time staff:  1 focused on all economic development but also oversees planning, 

code enforcement, assessing, and CBDG; 1 that spends 75%-80% on downtown issues 

 Lewiston:  1 full-time economic development director 

LAEGC increases this capacity while at the same time providing services collaboratively that are of 

mutual benefit.  The overall potential is to have a greater impact than if the Cities were to go it alone.  

Additionally, LAEGC is able to utilize non property tax sources through its loan pool and other 

financing/grant programs to do more than what would be possible through property tax appropriations 

from the Cities alone. 

Organization and Leadership 

The scope of services focuses on the specific program and services that are to be provided by LAEGC to 

the two Cities.  Each service area is like a piece of the puzzle that when put together determines “what” 

will be offered.  This process of refining and negotiating a scope of services does not address “how 

responsive and effective” these services will be over the long-term and the changing nature of economic 

development.  The Cities and the LAEGC should work to define and agree on what constitutes success in 

the delivery of economic development services and the value (return on investment) expectation of these 

services.  Regardless of the final agreed to scope of services there are several factors that need to be 

addressed in the short-term and worked on in the long-term to impact responsiveness and effectiveness.  

They are: 



Lewiston-Auburn Economic Growth Council Scope of Services –Final – May 19, 2014    Page - 3 
 

 Trust – internally and externally amongst the Economic Development partners (Auburn, 

Lewiston, LAEGC) 

 Process and procedures – these help build trust 

o Internal work plan for LAEGC 

o Annual review by LAEGC of organization, board, and president 

o Evaluation of services, metrics 

 Leadership qualities – within the organization including among the board.  These include:  

adaptability, leading in periods of chaos or uncertainty 

 Engagement – among the board, committees, and among the many stakeholders and networks 

 Open and active communications amongst the partners 

 Ability and respond and adapt to changes in the external environment  

It is highly recommended that these issues not be ignored.   The period of transition to a new president 

and another service year is a good opportunity to begin to regularly discuss, assess, and address each of 

these issues. In hiring a new president LAEGC should put strong emphasis on qualities of leadership, 

adaptability, board and stakeholder communication and engagement, networking, and ability to adopt and 

adhere to the latest policies, procedures, and best practices.  A top priority of the new president should be 

the development of an organizational plan that addresses these issues and provides details for staffing, 

management, board composition, roles and responsibilities, communications and financing.   No amount 

of rearranging the service pieces can insure an effective, high performing organization over the long-term.  

Working together to address these issues can result in a new culture to make this a high performing 

economic development organization for years to come. 

Funding for LAEGC 

Beyond this transitional year, funding for LAEGC from the Cities should be multi-year – at least 3-year 

commitment will create a stable environment for implementation of policies and actions.  This should 

include annually reporting on performance and strategic focus. 

LAEGC is currently exploring expanding loans and its loan pool programs to generate additional 

revenues and reduce reliance on property taxes.  LAEGC should continue to identify and pursue 

alternative funding sources and mechanisms for both loan programs and for the organization as a whole. 

With a renewed trust between the Cities and LAEGC, the completion of an Economic Development 

Strategy and an Organizational Plan, the LAEGC should then develop a three year operating budget and 

financing plan that includes increases in non-property tax revenues by considering:  

 Operations campaign (appeal to private sector) 

 Increases in revenues from loan management and financial programs  

 Increased use of TIF revenues including a joint TIF 

 Fees for services 

 

 



Lewiston-Auburn Economic Growth Council Scope of Services –Final – May 19, 2014    Page - 4 
 

Economic Development Corporations 

Currently there are two-separate development corporations, one for each City.  Both are separate legal 

entities from their respective cities.  They are asset-based private, non-profit corporations that purchase 

and own properties for development including individual properties purchased or obtained through 

foreclosure. Each corporation has a board with representation on the LAEGC and each has City 

representatives on its boards.  Each contracts with LAEGC for administrative services.  There has been 

some discussion of the merits of merging the two organizations but since these are separate entities from 

the Cities and LAEGC the advisory committee is not offering a recommendation in this area as part of the 

process. 

Downtown Development 

A previous draft of the scope of services included a section that tasked LAEGC with actively, through 

staff resources, supporting downtown development of the two Cities and becoming more active in joint 

downtown planning and economic development.  Auburn requested these services be removed from the 

scope.  Auburn hired a staff person with downtown expertise and felt the LAEGC services were 

unnecessary.  Lewiston is still in need of additional downtown services.  It is recommended that 

Downtown strategies be considered within the Economic Development Strategy.  With this as a starting 

point a discussion can emerge on how best to carry-out those strategies.  The following is a summary of 

issues that emerged in this process. 

Common areas of interest: 

 Improving quality of life through healthy downtowns 

 Maine Street Program – currently there is none in either City 

Functions of common interest include: 

 Event coordination 

 Walkability 

 Trails 

 Housing 

 Store fronts 

 Arts and culture 

 Investment and business attraction  

There are only a few organizations involved in Downtown issues in L/A. 

 United New Auburn – neighborhood group in Auburn 

 LA Arts 

 AVCOG 

It is unclear to some as to who has roles/oversight of downtown issues. 

Downtown efforts must involve downtown business and property owners taking ownership of process and 

improvements. 



Lewiston-Auburn Economic Growth Council Scope of Services –Final – May 19, 2014    Page - 5 
 

Community Transformation and Future of Economic Development 

As presented in the Joint workshop on economic development in March 2014, our economic system is in 

a period of rapid transformation and economic development services delivery must adapt.  The following 

are offered as issues which should be addressed for transforming the economic development system in 

Lewiston and Auburn: 

 Building capacity for functioning within a system composed of many networks and building 

leadership capacity for economic and community development among organizations and 

networks 

 Building capacity and resources for business intelligence, working smarter – data, research, 

digital technologies and information resources 

 Incorporating new funding models – and reducing reliance on government entities 

 Building capacity for understanding emerging trends and adapting accordingly 

 Greater focus on workforce 

 Greater focus on place based economic development and including worker and resident 

recruitment and retention strategies 

It is recommended that the Cities, LAEGC, and stakeholders develop a process for scanning, assessing, 

and addressing these and other issues related to transformation and change in the economy and economic 

development systems over time.  This could be coordinated as part of the L/A Future Forum effort. 

Priorities 

The work and recommendations presented cannot all be completed at once.  There is simply not enough 

collective time and resources.  To help with implementation the following prioritization of key 

activities/initiatives is offered. 

Level I 

 Hire new president 

 Economic Development Strategy (EDS) 

 Organization Plan including staffing, management, financing, and communications 

Level II 

 Hiring of additional staff to carry out work and organizational plan 

 Marketing plan 

 Business visitation program 

 3-year operating budget FY 2016, 2017, 2018 

Additionally LAEGC and the Cities should work with economic development stakeholders including the 

L/A Future Forum and Benchmark L/A as part of cooperative process to assess future changes and 

transformation in the economy and economic development and work to build capacity to adapt to those 

changes over time. 

 



Lewiston-Auburn Economic Growth Council Scope of Services –Final – May 19, 2014    Page - 6 
 

ATTACHMENT A - LAEGC SCOPE OF SERVICES BY SERVICE AREA 

The following is a scope of services designed to guide the operations of LAEGC over the next 

several years beginning in 2015. 

 

1. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY  
 

Recommended Scope of Services Language 

 

Description: The Cities are interested in developing and adopting an Economic Development 

Strategy (EDS).  The EDS should be L/A focused and not focused on the whole region/county.  The 

EDS will reflect the economic development vision, goals, and strategies of the Cities as a whole and 

identify and prioritize initiatives and projects for achieving them.  The EDS should not focus on 

detailed operational and organizational plans of the Cities, the LAEGC, or related economic 

development entities.   

 

Several plans related to economic and community development were completed in the past five to ten 

years.  Findings from these plans should be incorporated by reference rather than seeking to redo 

their efforts. The EDS should focus on economic development (growth in employment, income, 

and investment) but take into account the findings related to economic development in the 

existing plans for community development and other related areas such as transportation, 

housing, workforce development, education and environment.  Previous efforts have 

incorporated considerable public engagement processes so the EDS should focus specifically on 

engaging economic development stakeholders to develop of a focused, coordinated strategy.  
 

The EDS should be the top priority for the LAEGC in 2014-15. Completing such a plan will typically 

require a 4-6 month effort.  Once adopted the EDS will need to be implemented and annually 

reviewed/updated to reflect progress, changing priorities, goals and economic conditions. The 

LAEGC will contract for an experienced consultant to assist in the development of the EDS. 

 

FUNCTIONS/SERVICES:  

 

 Collaborate with the Cities, economic development stakeholders, and partner organizations  

 

 Monitor economic trends (local, state and national) to assess opportunities and priorities  

 

 Coordinate the development of the joint Economic Development Strategy (EDS) (note a 

suggested outline is included in Attachment B) 

 

 Integrate with and clarify roles of L/A Future Forum and Benchmark L/A with regard to the EDS 

 

 Track and measure progress of strategic goals and initiatives and communicate progress with the 

Cities, stakeholders, and public   

 

 Periodically coordinate a review of the EDS 

 

Anticipated Activities:  

 



Lewiston-Auburn Economic Growth Council Scope of Services –Final – May 19, 2014    Page - 7 
 

1. Annual EDS implementation  

 

2. Annual EDS progress/results report to Cities  

 

3. Annual review of EDS goals, priorities and initiatives  

 

Tasks/Projects:  

 

1. Development of a joint Lewiston-Auburn Economic Development Strategy  

 

A. Establish, in consultation with the LAEGC Board, and EDS Steering Committee  

 

B. Solicit and contract, in consultation with the Steering Committee, an independent, qualified 

economic development strategy consultant to provide research, analysis, and development 

support of the EDS  

 

C. Identify and engage stakeholders 

 

D. LAEGC to assist EDS process with administrative, coordination and committee support 

services  

 

E. Develop Draft EDS  

 

F. Review/adopt EDS by LAEGC Board, and City Councils 

 

Expected Outcome(s):  

 

 Adoption of Joint Economic Development Strategy for Lewiston and Auburn  

 

Note: Funding for Economic Development Strategy Consultant will be separately identified and 

budgeted within LAEGC contracted services and will require additional funds than what is currently 

provided. 

 

  



Lewiston-Auburn Economic Growth Council Scope of Services –Final – May 19, 2014    Page - 8 
 

2.  JOINT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COORDINATION  
 

Recommended Scope of Services Language 

 

Description: LAEGC shall facilitate and promote the joint approach, appearance and implementation 

of the “public sector side” of economic development in the cities. LAEGC will work to coordinate 

efforts on projects, interests and/or issues that are deemed to be of a joint nature. LAEGC will act as 

steward of and monitor the application of the Joint Economic Development Protocol.  

 

FUNCTIONS/SERVICES:  

 

 Lead and support cities in joint economic development activities  

 

 Establish a protocol and process for efficiently handling business inquiries.  This should foster a 

“no wrong door” procedure for handling business and investor inquiries that recognizes that 

inquiries will come in from many sources/directions but need to be effectively referred to the 

persons(s) best in a position to address. 

 

 Administer, Facilitate and Maintain the Joint Economic Development Protocol and TIF Policies 

 

Anticipated Activities:  

 

1) Facilitate periodic review of Joint Economic Development Protocol and TIF Policy  

 

2) Lead implementation of Joint Economic Development Protocol  

 

3) Track client contacts and results  

 

4) Recommendation to Cities of issues, projects, processes or policies that would enhance joint 

economic development  

 

Tasks/Projects:  

 

A. Review of Joint Economic Development Protocol and TIF Policy  

 

B. Work with Cities’ economic development staff to develop clear, efficient process for business 

referrals 

 

Expected Outcome(s):  

 

 Revised Joint Economic Development Protocol and TIF Policy including process for handling 

business inquiries 

 

  



Lewiston-Auburn Economic Growth Council Scope of Services –Final – May 19, 2014    Page - 9 
 

3.  MARKETING and PROMOTION  
 

Recommended Scope of Services Language 

 

Description: LAEGC shall be responsible for marketing and promoting of Lewiston and Auburn for 

economic development including business retention, expansion and attraction. Many entities and 

individuals play a part in marketing the Cities.  Much of this is out of the direct control of any one 

entity including the Cities, the Chamber, and the LAEGC.  Therefore it is essential that the LAEGC 

play a convening role in coordinating multiple efforts and helping to present a series of messages that 

complement each other.  The LAEGC will act as a clearinghouse for other community marketing 

efforts seeking to support, coordinate and reduce duplication in the collective efforts. LAEGC shall 

be vested with maintaining the branding of the Cities for economic development and work 

collaboratively to establish and promote the “brand” with stakeholders.  

 

Businesses, site locators, investors, and citizens are all using digital and social media in personal and 

business information gathering, engagement and transactions.  In its marketing and promotion 

activities the LAEGC shall employ traditional media as appropriate but move toward increasing use 

of digital mediums.  The LAEGC will promote and represent the communities locally, regionally, 

statewide, and beyond. The LAEGC will also work to recognize and celebrate the economic 

achievements of the cities, businesses and citizens.  

 

FUNCTIONS/SERVICES:  

 

 Marketing and promoting the communities and their assets  

 

o Develop marketing and collateral materials which promote the cities and their economic 

growth – with emphasis on web, digital, and social media  

 

o Coordinate with and support Visitor/Tourism promotion efforts within and outside of the 

community.  

 

o Assist in the marketing and promotion of the cities industrial/commercial parks, Auburn-

Lewiston Municipal Airport, and key properties for redevelopment  

 

o Assist/support marketing and promotion activities of the Cities’ downtowns  

 

 Share information that recognizes and celebrates the Cities’ economic progress  

 

 Maintain of Economic Development/Community Promotion website and social media sites  

 

 Actively lead/coordinate community branding “image” efforts  

 

 Collaborate/Participate with other community promotion efforts  

 

 Create an Advisory Group for Economic Development Marketing and Promotion and engage 

stakeholders, interested business representatives and marketing professionals to provide advice 

and guidance in marketing/promotion efforts  

 



Lewiston-Auburn Economic Growth Council Scope of Services –Final – May 19, 2014    Page - 10 
 

 Better utilize Great Falls TV for economic development communications, marketing, and 

promotion 

 

 

Anticipated Activities:  

 

1) Develop an annual marketing and promotion plan  

 

2) Maintenance and publication of joint marketing materials  

 

3) Creation and maintenance of websites and social media sites  

 

4) Development of and attendance at marketing and promotion events  

 

5) Facilitate/organize the annual business to business trade show, Annual Dinner, and Business 

Forum  

 

6) Preparation and issuance of media releases/events  

 

7) Creation and staff support for an economic development marketing advisory group  

 

Tasks/Projects:  

 

A. Cities will discuss and consider consolidating the services and resources of Great Falls TV 

(GFTV) under the LAEGC to provide for additional marketing, business and community 

promotion.  

 

Expected Outcome(s):  

 

 Annual Marketing and Promotion plan with results tracked and reported annually  

 
Note:  LAEGC currently budgets approximately $15,000 for Marketing and Promotion beyond staff costs.  

This level of funding is insufficient to fully implement the activities specified above. 

 

  



Lewiston-Auburn Economic Growth Council Scope of Services –Final – May 19, 2014    Page - 11 
 

4. BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT - RETENTION, EXPANSION, AND ATTRACTION  
 

Recommended Scope of Services Language 

 

Description: LAEGC shall be responsible for leading, coordinating and supporting public sector and 

private sector efforts to grow, improve, retain, and attract businesses in Lewiston-Auburn. LAEGC 

will focus on helping to create a positive business and community friendly environment which 

encourages the growth and location of business in the cities. LAEGC will monitor, track and assess 

economic development trends, issues, and resources to guide the Cities in overall economic 

development efforts.  LAEGC will actively perform services to retain, grow, and attract businesses, 

employment and investment in the Cities.  

 

FUNCTIONS/SERVICES:  

 

 Assist existing business with retention and/or expansion 

 

 Lead the development, coordination, and support of a business visitation program to identify 

existing businesses needs and concerns – This should be a formalized business visitation 

process/program that focuses on obtaining strategic information, utilizing that information for 

business assistance and support services, and improving the planning and delivery of economic 

development including revising the economic plan as needed.  This effort should be done 

collaboratively with the Cities’ economic development staff and Chamber of Commerce.  (Note:  

a list of process components to include in a business visitation program is included in 

Attachment C.  It should also be noted that since a formal program currently does not exist, the 

first year should focus on developing a framework and testing the implementation and 

identification of revenues for full implementation.  Revenues beyond those in the current 

operating budget will likely be required to implement an affective business visitation program) 

 

 Lead the provision and coordination of services and activities to support business attraction to the 

Cities including: 

 

o In coordination and cooperation with commercial brokers, private landowners and the 

Cities, maintain database of potential development sites and real estate properties and 

make it available electronically through the LAEGC’s website.  It should be stressed that 

this should be a coordinated and cooperative approach with the commercial real estate 

community and the Cities.  Some of the brokers may choose not to list their properties 

though such a system, but LAEGC can proceed and work with those willing to cooperate. 

 

o Assist clients in conducting site searches and facilitate tours of the community  

 

o Serve as agent/administrator of the commercial/industrial parks controlled by local 

development corporations 

 

o Provide and maintain up-to-date data and information on the LAEGC website that assists 

business in making location decisions including data related to workforce; taxes and fees; 

development review, approval, permitting, and licensing; infrastructure, utility and 

transportation availability and costs; demographic and market data; incentive and support 

programs; and community amenities. 

 



Lewiston-Auburn Economic Growth Council Scope of Services –Final – May 19, 2014    Page - 12 
 

o Conduct activities to support business attraction in targeted industries and opportunities 

that emerge for the Economic Development Strategy 

  

 Work with workforce development partners (education, workforce, labor, and training 

stakeholders) to develop, support, and implement programs, policies, and services to meet the 

workforce needs to grow the economy in the two Cities 

 

 Work with local, state, and regional partners/stakeholders for support of entrepreneurs and 

business start-ups 

 

 Encourage the involvement of the private and non-governmental sectors in economic 

development efforts  

 

Anticipated Activities:  

 

1) Seek and support new business development. Track #’s of businesses assisted, outcomes, common 

trends and noted community needs/issues  

 

2) Jointly maintain and update inventory of developable properties (land and buildings) in the 

industrial, commercial and downtown sectors of the cities and make information available through 

the LAEGC website  

 

3) Lead the development, coordination, and support of a Business Visitation Program 

 

4) Provide an Annual Report of Business Development  

 

5) Lead the provision and coordination of services, activities, and information to support business 

attraction to the Cities 

 

6) Provide information and links to resources on the LAEGC website to support workforce, 

entrepreneurial, and business start-up development   

 

Tasks/Projects:  

 

A. Business Visitation Program (see Attachment C) 

 

B. Business Attraction Strategy linked to EDS 

 

C. Update to website to support business expansion, retention, and attraction   

 

Expected Outcome(s):  

 

 Annual Report of Business Development  

 

 

 

  



Lewiston-Auburn Economic Growth Council Scope of Services –Final – May 19, 2014    Page - 13 
 

5. TARGETED GROWTH OPPORTUNITIES  
 

Recommended Scope of Services Language 

 

Description: The Cities of Lewiston and Auburn have numerous economic, geographic, and social 

strengths in the pursuit of economic development. In order to maximize economic growth potential 

the cities seek to target specific growth opportunities. LAEGC will work jointly with the Cities, 

business community and stakeholders to lead, promote and support the growth efforts of targeted 

economic opportunities. Targeted opportunities shall be identified in the Economic Development 

Strategy and/or as determined to be in the best interests of the communities. LAEGC’s efforts will 

include employing industry/sector specific marketing plans and methods, and identification and 

pursuit of specific businesses and/or business growth. Efforts to increase targeted growth areas will 

include a mix of expansion of existing businesses and new business.  

 

FUNCTIONS/SERVICES: 

 

 Include a targeted industry and opportunity analysis as part of Economic Development Strategy 

(EDS) that identifies, assesses, and develops strategies for targeted industry sectors and economic 

growth opportunities.  This should include assessing: 

 

o Industrial, Trade, Logistics and Transportation (ITLT) – including consideration of port 

related opportunities and the need to coordinate strategies and services with regional and 

state port related resources including the Maine Port Authority and Maine International 

Trade Center. 
o The Downtowns as a targeted opportunity 

o Healthcare 

o Manufacturing 

o Call centers/back-end operations 

o Business, professional, and technical services 

o Others as evident from the data analysis 

 Based on the Targeted Industry and Opportunity Analysis develop strategies in core economic 

develop service areas to support their growth and development including: 

 

o Business expansion  

o Business attraction 

o Workforce development 

o Entrepreneurship/business Start-ups 

 

Anticipated Activities:  
 

1) Create advisory committee(s) to oversee the EDS for targeted opportunities 

 

2) Selection of and working with professional consultant as part of the EDS 

 

  

Task/Projects:  
 



Lewiston-Auburn Economic Growth Council Scope of Services –Final – May 19, 2014    Page - 14 
 

A. EDS Strategy including strategies for targeted industries and opportunities (See Attachment B) 

Expected Outcome(s):  

 

 Targeted industry analysis included as part of Economic Development Strategy 

 

 Retention, expansion, and attraction and Marketing plan for other targeted opportunities 

 

 

  



Lewiston-Auburn Economic Growth Council Scope of Services –Final – May 19, 2014    Page - 15 
 

6.   PROJECT FINANCING AND PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT  
 

Recommended Scope of Services Language 

 

Description: The LAEGC shall develop and manage financing resources and programs designed to 

provide “gap” and other financing for businesses locating or expanding in Lewiston-Auburn. The 

LAEGC shall act as a clearinghouse for entrepreneurs and businesses seeking business financing. 

The LAEGC shall coordinate/collaborate with public and private lending organizations and programs 

to provide assistance and guidance to clients. The LAEGC shall administer and manage the Cities’ 

business lending/grant programs, as assigned. The LAEGC will endeavor to identify, develop and 

expand the amount and availability of business support resources in the community.  

 

FUNCTIONS/SERVICES:  

 

 Act as a business financing clearinghouse for the Cities  

 

 Serve as a navigator to businesses seeking financial resources in support of growth or 

development  

 

 Seek and advocate for additional community resources, including private and/or grant funding, 

targeted for economic development financing and projects 

 

 Manage assigned loan/grant programs from the Cities, development corporations, State/Federal 

agencies or private institutions  

 

 Staff support of LAEGC Loan Committee/Business Financing Advisory group  

 

Anticipated Activities:  

 

1) Staff and support LAEGC Loan Committee/Business Financing Advisory group  

 

2) Loan program and portfolio management and administration  

 

3) Monitor other ‘public’ financing programs and coordinate services delivery to minimize 

duplication  

 

Tasks/Projects:  

 

A. Expansion of the LAEGC Loan Committee to a Business Financing Advisory group which will 

not only providing loan review but also business financing assistance and advice to businesses 

and the LAEGC. 

 

Expected Outcome(s):  

 

 Annual Report of loan program(s) activity and results 

 

 Review and recommendation (as appropriate) to Cities of Loan Program Guidelines  

 



Lewiston-Auburn Economic Growth Council Scope of Services –Final – May 19, 2014    Page - 16 
 

7. ADMINISTRATION, ADVOCACY and GOVERNANCE  
 

Recommended Scope of Services Language 

 

Description: LAEGC shall provide staff support and administration to the overall economic 

development (in addition to and in support of the services described above) program of the Cities and 

the community as a whole. Additionally, it is recognized that LAEGC has certain administrative 

responsibilities associated with the management, operation and governance of the organization. 

Similarly, the LAEGC serves as the administrative support for other development related agencies 

serving Lewiston-Auburn including, but not limited to, the Auburn Business Development 

Corporation (ABDC), Lewiston Development Corporation (LDC), and the Lewiston and Auburn 

Railroad Company (LARR). LAEGC provides support services to these entities as requested and 

upon mutually agreed terms and conditions. This area of service is meant to encompass these 

administrative functions and responsibilities, as well as unanticipated and miscellaneous services, 

needs and projects which may arise from time to time.  

 

FUNCTIONS/SERVICES:  

 

 Provide logistical support (meetings/agendas/minutes/accounting, etc.) to the LAEGC and 

development corporations  

 

o Auburn Business Development Corporation, Lewiston Development Corporation, 

Lewiston and Auburn Railroad Company  

 

o Staff and support numerous (currently 10) standing committees of the LAEGC and 

Development Corporations  

 

 Provide technical assistance/support to city staff and airport manager in negotiating 

incentives/lease terms relating to economic development projects 

 

 Administer the Foreign-Trade Zone (F-TZ)  

 

 Serve as Liaison for economic development to the Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport 

Committee  

 

 Support and coordinate the goals and efforts of L/A Future Forum and Benchmark L/A   

 

 Support other economic/community development-related issues, initiatives and projects that arise 

and as requested by the Cities 

 

 Monitor regional and state policies and inform Cities of issues that may impact economic 

development  

 

Anticipated Activities:  

 

1) Coordinated and efficient administration of the Cities’ joint economic development programs, 

development corporations and activities 

2) Conduct annual briefing to Cities and stakeholders on regional, state, and federal issues and 

policies that may impact economic  development in the Cities  



Lewiston-Auburn Economic Growth Council Scope of Services –Final – May 19, 2014    Page - 17 
 

 

Expected Outcome(s):  

 

 Annual reporting to the Cities on LAEGC operations, use of funds, and outcomes 

 

 

  



Lewiston-Auburn Economic Growth Council Scope of Services –Final – May 19, 2014    Page - 18 
 

ATTACHMENT B - OUTLINE OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 

Identification and assessment of opportunities, related strategies, and priority projects/actions around: 

 Overview from existing plans and identification of gaps 

 Vision, goals/objectives 

 Identification, assessment, and strategy development  of targeted industry sectors and 

opportunities 

 Entrepreneurship/innovation/small business ecosystem 

 Workforce development 

 Business retention, expansion, attraction 

 Key development sites  

 Other key factors impacting investment and economic growth 

o Housing 

o Transportation 

o Land use/zoning/planning/permitting/approval process 

o Energy/utilities/telecommunications 

o Education 

o Quality of place 

 Marketing and communications 

 Implementation: 

o Strategy/action 

o Timeframe 

o Roles/responsibilities 

o Costs/needed resources 

o Evaluation/measurement 

 

 

  



Lewiston-Auburn Economic Growth Council Scope of Services –Final – May 19, 2014    Page - 19 
 

ATTACHMENT C- COMPONENTS OF A BUSINESS VISITATION PROGRAM 

This process should include written strategy regarding: 

 Persons conducting visitation 

 Training for conducting visitation 

 Questionnaire for businesses being visited 

 Selection of businesses 

 Follow-up to specific business if warranted 

 Tabulation and assessment of findings 

 Use of information including tying into strategic planning  

 On-going data management 

 



City Council 

Workshop Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

Subject:  Execute Green and Healthy Homes Initiative Compact for the Cities of Lewiston Auburn Maine 

 

Information:   Pursuant to City Council goals for safety, the Green and Healthy Homes Compact creates a 

template for a city-wide criteria for healthy homes.  The currect compact addresses low- and middle-income 

households and embraces a format for implementation for all income levels. 

 

Most people spend 90% of their time indoors.  The home is the most important environment that affects the 

health of families.  There is a very direct correlation between housing and health.  Unhealthy housing conditions 

may seem like cosmetic problems, but hazards are where you least expect them:  peeling paint can contain lead, 

too much moisture can result in mold, and clutter can shelter insects and rodents.  Some deadly hazards are 

invisible such as carbon monoxide and radon. 

 

I am proposing that we joint a new collaborative effort along with numerous other local agencies and the 

national "Green & Healthy Homes Initiative" (GHHI) to improve the health of Auburn families.  A steering 

committee has been meeting over several months to modify a draft of the Compact for GHHI.  The draft 

document was provided by the sponsor agency of GHHI, a national organization who promotes healthier homes 

through a set of standards of practices to create more sustainable, affordable and healthier homes.  GHHI has 

close ties with the Coalition to End Childhood Lead Poisoning.  This agency provides advisory services to other 

organizations, including the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, on matters relating to child 

lead poisoning. Through their work they were chosen to lead the national effort to integrate lead hazard control, 

healthy homes, weatherization and energy efficiency work from which GHHI grew.  For more information 

about the national program, see http://www.greenandhealthyhomes.org/ 

 

Partners involved in the Compact will work closely to coordinate healthy home interventions that will bring the 

best results possible.  This approach is to have a central coordinating agency to act as facilitator, conduct a 

housing assessment, identify available resources, coordinate interventions/improvements, and educate the 

family.  Through this partnership, federal and philantropic investments in weatherization, energy efficiency, 

lead, and health and safety will become alligned for an improved service delivery.  We expect the great energy 

brought about by this collaboration will result in greater resources to the commnity and ultimately cost savings.  

We expect that being involved in the Compact will improve the likelihood of success in Federal grants as well 

as foundation grants.   We can expect measurable improvements in health, economic, and social outcomes for 

children and families.  Results that have occurred in other areas include reduced emergency room visits and 

hospitalizations due to asthmatic episodes, reduced school absences, savings on heating though energy 

efficiency, increased access to resources, and creation of "green" worker jobs and training opportunities for 

under-employed and unemployed workers.   Some of the partners in this effort include St. Mary's Health 

Council Workshop Date:  June 2 , 2014 Item  B 

Author:   Reine Mynahan, Community Development Director 



City Council 

Workshop Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

System, Central Maine Medical Center, Healthy Androscoggin, Community Concepts, Inc.,  Bates College, and 

the City of Lewiston as well as state agencies.   

 

The Compact is attached.  The Preamble of the document,  page 2, established the vision for the initiative with a 

goal of making homes healthy, safe and sustainable.  This is an opportunity to improve the lives of people living 

in Auburn.  

 

Financial:  None 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Authorize City Manager to execute the Compact.  

 

Previous Meetings and History: None 

 

Attachments:  

Green & Healthy Homes Initiative Compact for the Cities of Lewiston Auburn Maine 2014 

Flyer, Seven Tips for Keeping a Home Healthy 

Flyer, The health of our communityVolune 1/Issue 1 of Green & healthy Homes Initiative, "Healthy Homes, 

Happy Families" 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



Shanna Rogers 

Community Concepts, Inc.  

240 Bates St.  

Lewiston, ME, 04240 

May 20, 2014 

Honorable Mayor, City Council and City Manager 

City Of Auburn 

60 Court Street 

Auburn, ME 04210 

Honorable Mayor, Councilors and Manager: 

I am writing today to request the opportunity to present for review the Green and Healthy 

Homes Initiative (GHHI). The presentation would include the background and purpose of 

GHHI, the benefits of GHHI to Auburn residents, homeowners, landlords, and 

businesses. At the end of the presentation, the partners of GHHI would request the City 

of Auburn approve adding Auburn to the list of partners working collaboratively to 

address housing, health, employment and education needs of our community through the 

Green and Healthy Homes Initiative.  

 

The Green and Healthy Homes Initiative will use existing funding sources more 

efficiently to address lead hazards, air quality, energy efficiency, slip hazards and pest 

hazards within the homes of Lewiston and Auburn. The compact is the first formal step 

that the partners will take to commit time and effort to working together in new ways for 

increased impact. As of today’s date, there are fourteen confirmed signatories for the 

compact, and believe it is important that Auburn City Council has the opportunity to 

signify their support. The Green and Healthy Homes Initiative value’s Auburn as a 

partner, and look forward to the continued collaboration.  

 

I am happy to meet with any staff or Councilors prior to our City Council presentation, to 

explain further the enclosures, or to answer questions.  

 

 

Shanna Rogers, GHHI Coordinator 

Enclosure:  Lewiston Auburn GHHI Compact 

 GHHI information overview sheet 

 LA Healthy Homes Program overview 

 Healthy Homes, Healthy Families magazine 

 

 



There is a clear link between unhealthy housing and 
unhealthy children and communities. Different 
organizations around our community are making efforts 
to improve our housing stock through various programs. 
However, these programs are not currently 
connected through a network where they can share 
insights, methodology, and data. 

 

A new  
housing approach  

The health of our community 

What is the Green and Healthy Home 

Initiative (GHHI) Model? 

 
The Green and Healthy Homes Initiative is designed 
to integrate health, safety, lead hazard reduction, 
energy efficiency, and weatherization household 
interventions. Each house receives a thorough 
assessment and intervention so it will ultimately qualify as a green and healthy home. These 
comprehensive assessments and interventions will not only stabilize individual homes, but will 
strengthen communities by allowing residents to remain in properties that they would otherwise have to 
vacate due to hazards in the home and escalating energy consumption costs. 

What is a Green  

 

• Dry • Clean  • Contaminant-free  
• Pest-free • Safe • Energy efficient  
• Well-maintained • Well-ventilated.   
 

 “Healthy” Homes are those designed and 
maintained to foster health and safety.  

 “Green” homes are those that  reduce water, 
energy usage and consumption.  

 



Creating efficiencies  
 

The GHHI model is successful because of its integrated 
framework, which fosters collaboration among partners 
across multiple sectors. This cooperation includes 
addressing issues, and sharing data collection and 
outcomes. 
 
The alliance formed around this effort creates efficiencies 
which save both time and money to all parties involved. The 
Green and Healthy Homes Initiative is not a new program, 
but rather a system to make what we’re already doing 
more efficient. Through a cost effective integrated 
intervention strategy, we can create homes that will yield 
better health, social, and economic outcomes for occupants 
and their children. 
 

Other benefits 
GHHI maximizes public and philanthropic investments for  
major benefits: 

 Government innovation in service delivery 

 Development of sustainable community-based “green 

collar” jobs and social enterprise 

 Creation of stable and sustainable green and healthy 

homes in low and moderate income neighborhoods. 

 Measurable improvements in health outcomes for 
children, seniors, and families 

 Wealth retention and improved property values 

 

We need you! 
To make this collaboration work we need you! 

Community members, policy makers, and 

- break the current link between unhealthy housing  
  and unhealthy children  and communities. 
 
- develop healthy and sustainable green homes  
  create green jobs 
 
- improve health and economic  outcomes  
  for generations to come 

 

 

 

 In certain areas of Lewiston half  
of residents live below the federal 
poverty line, which is $11,490 annual 
income for an individual or $23,550 
for a family of four.  

 
 As many as one in four residents are 

unemployed .  
 
 In 2000, one third of tenants paid 

more than 30% of their income on 
rent.  

 
 Nationally, low-income households 

spend 14% of their income on energy 
costs compared to 3.5% for other 
households, 

 
 87% of buildings in Lewiston were 

built before 1979. Our aging housing 
stock leaves  houses that have 
structural decay, outdated heating 
systems, lack of insulation and 
weatherization, and accessibility 
issues such as steep stairs and 
narrow doorways.  

 Nationally, 40% of asthma episodes 
are caused by triggers in the home. 
Some include mold, cockroaches, 
tobacco smoke and chemical odors. 

Local Statistics 

For more information, go to: www.ghhi.org 

Become part of the movement/revolution  



1.29.14 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Green & Healthy Homes Initiative  

 

Compact for the  

 

Cities of Lewiston Auburn Maine 

2014 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
2 

 

 

Preamble 

 

We, the undersigned, agree to direct our relevant efforts toward aligning, braiding, and 

coordinating home interventions in the spirit of the Green & Healthy Homes Initiative 

(GHHI) goal of making homes healthy, safe, and sustainable.  We pledge to work 

together to realize our belief that the Green & Healthy Homes Initiative will produce 

healthier, more energy efficient housing, higher quality green jobs, and improved health 

and social outcomes for families.  GHHI is working to inform the Federal Healthy Homes 

Work Group, national partners, and state and local agencies in the development of a 

national green and healthy housing standard. The initiative strives to actively engage 

local government and non-governmental partners in each of the communities that are 

already conducting work related to green and healthy homes interventions. We believe 

that GHHI is an opportunity to improve our communities and the lives of those living 

within them by coordinating physical interventions to address home based health and 

safety hazards and energy deficiencies, resulting in: 

 

 better health outcomes for our children, seniors and families 

 more efficient use of public investment through improved interagency 

coordination 

 improved energy efficiency for low and middle  income families 

 higher quality green jobs 

 reduced barriers to school attendance and work among families with young 

children 

 support for neighborhood stabilization through more effective and sustainable 

home investments                    

 

We acknowledge that we must work collaboratively and in close partnership to advance 

this initiative on behalf of the families we serve. Thus, we commit ourselves, our 

organizations, and our relevant resources to work in partnership to achieve the goals and 

principles set out in this GHHI Compact, always recognizing and respecting the diversity 

of interests and perspectives that will inform and sustain our Lewiston Auburn Initiative. 

 

While we have agreed to the goals and principles, the implementation strategies will 

require further discussion, planning and negotiation, including among agencies with legal 

or regulatory authority at the local level.  This Compact may be incorporated into 

contracts, memorandums of understanding, and other agreements as part of the 

implementation effort. It will be the responsibility of all of the parties acting in good faith 

to see that the work of the initiative is consistent with the agreed upon common goals and 

principles.  

 

 

 

 

 



 
3 

Lead Signatories 
 

 

 

City of Lewiston, Maine 

 

 

_________________________ 

Ed Barrett, City Administrator 

      

     

      

Community Concepts, Inc.  

 

 

_________________________ 

Michael Burke, Chief Executive Officer 

 

 

Healthy Androscoggin  

 

 

_________________________ 

Steven P. Johndro, MPH, MHA, CHES;  

Executive Director 

 

 

Androscoggin Head Start and Child 

Care 

 

 

_________________________ 

Betsy Norcross Plourde, LMSW; 

Executive Director 

 

 

St. Mary’s Health System 

 

 

_________________________ 

Lee Myles, President & Chief Executive 

Officer 

 

 

 

 

SeniorsPlus 

 

 

_________________________ 

Betsy Sawyer-Manter, Executive 

Director 

 

 

Community Concepts Finance 

Corporation 

 

 

_________________________ 

Dennis Lajoie, Chief Executive Officer 

 

 

Harward Center for Community 

Partnership at Bates College 

 

 

_________________________ 

Darby Ray, Director 

 

 

Mattra, Inc. General Contracting 

 

 

_________________________ 

Matthew Fournier, Owner 

 

 

Auburn Housing Authority 

 

 

_________________________ 

Richard Whiting, Executive Director 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
4 

Central Maine Medical Center 

 

 

_________________________ 

Tina Marie-Legere, President 

 

 

Neighborhood Housing League 
 

 

_________________________ 

Melissa Dunn, Coordinator 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Lewiston Housing Authority 

 

 

_________________________ 

Jim Dowling, Executive Director 

 

 

DFD Russell Medical Center 

 

 

_________________________ 
Laurie Kane-Lewis, CEO 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 
5 

Table of Contents 
 

I. The Green & Healthy Homes Initiative 

 

II. A Green and Healthy Home 

 

III. Lewiston Auburn’s Commitment to the Green & Healthy Homes Initiative  

 

A. Collaboration 

 

B. Assessments and Interventions 

 

C. Resources Leveraging 

 

D. Affiliation with National GHHI Efforts  

 

1. The Development of National GHHI Model Programs and National Housing 

Standards 

 

2. Participating with GHHI National Network 

 

E. Job Creation and Workforce Development 

 

1. Training 

 

2. Hiring 

 

F. Education and Sustainability 

 

 

 

 

 



 
6 

I. The Green & Healthy Homes Initiative 

 

The Green & Healthy Homes Initiative™ (GHHI) is a social innovation that yields high 

rates of return on the integration of energy and health-based investments in low and 

middle income communities. With support from partners at the White House, the Council 

on Foundations, and the U.S. Conference of Mayors, GHHI works in collaboration with 

local and federal agencies as well as philanthropic partners to align, braid, and coordinate 

funding and programs nationwide.  

 

GHHI maximizes public and philanthropic investments for 5 major benefits: 

  

 Government innovation in service delivery 

 Development of sustainable community-based “green collar” jobs and social 

enterprise 

 Creation of stable and sustainable green and healthy homes in low and moderate 

income neighborhoods 

 Measurable improvements in health outcomes for children, seniors, and families 

 Wealth retention and improved property values  

 

In 2010, with support from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

(HUD) the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) awarded the Coalition a 

contract to support sites nationally on the effort to change system processes to produce 

Green and Healthy Homes. In its first few years of operation, GHHI has worked with 

communities to attract millions in public and private sector support to engage work on 

over 4,500 homes and develop a set of standards and business practices that can be 

nationally replicated. Serving as a key informant to the 11-agency Federal Interagency 

Working Group on Healthy Homes, GHHI became a critical catalyst in shifting the focus 

of the healthy homes industry to incorporate energy efficiency and vice versa. 

  

Initial Green & Healthy Homes Initiative Sites 
 

 

Ultimately, the goal of GHHI is to support the development of Green and Healthy Homes 

Standards for all housing intervention programs and to efficiently leverage health into 

investments in areas such as weatherization and energy efficiency. 

 

 

• Atlanta, GA 

• Flint, MI 

• Baltimore, MD 

•          Buffalo, NY 

•          Chicago, IL 

• New Haven, CT 

• Cleveland, OH 

• Philadelphia, PA 

 

• Detroit, MI 

•          Dubuque, IA 

• Jackson, MS 

•          San Antonio, TX 

• Providence, RI 

• Oakland, CA 

• Denver, CO 

• Cowlitz Tribe, WA 

• Spirit Lake Nation, ND 

 

  



 
7 

 

II.  A Green and Healthy Home 
 

A green and healthy home is one that consumes less water and energy, produces less 

waste, and does not contain health or safety threats.  A GHHI home maximizes the 

benefits of each individual home improvement and in many different ways supports the 

well-being of the people living there. The elements below are detailed in a separate 

attachment covering Green and Healthy Standards and Practices.
1
 

 

 Clean 

 Dry 

 Safe 

 Well-Ventilated 

 Pest-Free 

 Contaminant-Free 

 Free from Lead Hazards 

 Energy Efficient 

 Sufficiently Weatherized 

 Residents Equipped to Sustain and Maintain a Healthy and Efficient Home 

 

 

 

III. Lewiston Auburn’s Commitment to the Green & Healthy Homes 

Initiative 

Lewiston Auburn’s Vision 
It is the vision of Lewiston Auburn’s Green & Healthy Homes Initiative that each home 

in Lewiston Auburn is a green and healthy home, and each resident benefits from a green 

and healthy home environment.  

 

A. Collaboration. The goals and principles in this document are the result of a 

collaborative process. Likewise, the responsibility for implementing these goals 

and principles will require a partnership of many parties, including the City 

Manager and Administrator’s Offices, city departments, state and federal agency 

partners, non-profits, foundations, community organizations, private companies, 

and communities throughout the cities. Without this partnership, neither GHHI 

nor the community benefits envisioned by this Compact will be fully realized. 

  

 Partners agree to work together to establish an effective collaborative structure 

and streamline the housing assessment and intervention processes  

 The GHHI Learning Network (Steering Committee) in Lewiston Auburn will 

be made up of agencies, organizations, and companies listed as signatories 

and additional partners in this Compact, and will meet on at least a quarterly 

basis 

                                                 
1
 The attachment Green and Healthy Homes Standards and Practices provides the full detailed list. 



 
8 

 Partners agree to support
2
 the coordination of housing intervention efforts and 

will work to remove barriers to integration among city and state agencies and 

private partner stakeholders 

 Partners agree to support efforts to share data and applicable information, and 

develop common metrics 

 

B.  Assessments and Interventions  

 

The Green & Healthy Homes Initiative of Lewiston Auburn will participate in the 

following work, where applicable: 

 

 Conduct comprehensive housing assessments and interventions in 10 units in 

Lewiston Auburn by the end of July, 2015, integrating the areas of lead hazard 

reduction, Healthy Homes, weatherization, energy efficiency, and related 

work 

 Partners agree to support working with the GHHI national technical assistance 

team on a work plan that outlines activities, benchmarks, and a timeline for 

how the work above will be performed, and identifies the role of each partner 

and how they will contribute to the local effort  

 Partners agree to support the use of comprehensive assessment tools to assess 

multiple home-based health hazards and energy efficiency issues 

 Partners agree to support aligning program and income eligibility 

requirements where possible 

 Partners agree to target and prioritize interventions to properties with 

vulnerable populations such as young children, pregnant women, seniors, or 

people with disabilities, when applicable to program funding 

 Partners agree to work to align stand-alone programs, where appropriate, 

(weatherization, lead hazard control, fire safety, etc.) with a comprehensive 

strategy that integrates resources, reduces redundancies, and leverages 

multiple interventions in a single home 

 

C. Resources Leveraging 

 

 Partners agree to align programs, braid funds, and coordinate agencies to the 

greatest extent feasible and allowed by law or regulation 

 Partners agree to leverage public and private resources to conduct 

comprehensive GHHI interventions when appropriate and allowed under 

program requirements 

 

D. Affiliation with National Green & Healthy Homes Initiative Efforts 

 

1.  The development of National Green & Healthy Homes Initiative Model 

Programs and Housing Standards 

 

                                                 
2
 Support, here and hereafter, is an indication of willingness to advocate, plan, implement and advance. 



 
9 

 Partners agree to support the establishment of enhanced national, state and 

local housing standards that implement a holistic housing approach 

through comprehensive environmental assessments and integrated 

interventions in the areas of: lead hazard reduction, Healthy Homes, 

weatherization, and energy efficiency 

 Partners agree to support the development of model GHHI Programs that 

create feasible housing assessment and intervention programs for low and 

middle income communities  

 

2.  Participating with GHHI National Network 

 

 Partners agree to inform the Federal Healthy Homes Work Group in 

barriers, recommendations, and best practices coming out of this work  

 Partners agree to have participation from Lewiston Auburn at National 

GHHI meetings, webinars, and trainings 

 Partners agree to share information, success stories, and best practices to 

be highlighted on the www.ghhinetwork.ning.com communication site and 

in the annual report 

 Partners agree to provide data if  applicable including but not limited to 

unit production, energy and health outcomes, and workforce outcomes to a 

national GHHI data platform
3
 

 Partners agree to help provide information for the purposes of evaluating 

GHHI efforts 

 

E. Job Creation and Workforce Development 

 

Partners agree to use the Green & Healthy Homes Initiative as a model for 

breaking down barriers to full employment for unemployed and underemployed 

low income residents and promoting equity through training and employment 

efforts. 

 

1. Training  

 

 Partners agree to support, where possible, varied training programs to 

provide skill training and actual certifications and accreditations in green 

trades Green Jobs Training and Certifications such as: 

o Weatherization Tactics Training 

o Energy Analyst Training 

o Lead Hazard Reduction Supervisor, Worker, and/or EPA Renovator 

o Healthy Homes Practitioner 

o General workforce skills such as public health educator, computer 

skills, customer service skills, and business skills 

                                                 
3
 Specific metrics and data to be collected will be contained in a separate document. 



 
10 

 Partners agree to support the cross-training of healthy homes related 

inspectors and contractors to increase and broaden their skills and enable 

flexibility in employment opportunities. 

 Partners agree to support organizations’ efforts to target applicable 

training funds and employment stipends to persons with barriers to 

employment such as long standing unemployment or underemployment or 

criminal history 

 Partners agree to provide on the job training in green trade skills to 

enhance the skill level of participants and improve their competitiveness in 

the marketplace 

 

2. Hiring 

 

 Partners agree to adhere to Section 3 Requirements and other relevant 

local hiring requirements, where applicable 

 Partners agree to support and maintain pathways to higher salaried jobs for 

low income residents from at risk communities  

 Partners agree to support and provide for services to maintain drug free 

work places 

 Partners agree to support providing employment stipends to help 

participants obtain employment 

 Partners agree to support efforts to: 

o Provide opportunities for people who are chronically unemployed and 

underemployed who are determined to direct their efforts to obtaining 

and retaining full employment 

o Provide on the job training for residents who are chronically 

unemployed or underemployed as part of GHHI employment 

initiatives 

o Target 40% of training funds and employment stipends to persons who 

have been chronically unemployed and underemployed and who are 

determined to direct their efforts to obtaining and retaining full 

employment 

o Mandate that contractors conducting GHHI interventions stipulate in 

their contracts benchmarks for the hiring of low-income community-

based residents  

 

F. Education and Sustainability 

 Agree to support education
i
 of clients and behavioral changes that will 

enhance the long term effectiveness of interventions 

 Agree to provide directions on how clients can sustain and maintain the 

improvements from the provided investments 

 

 

 

                                                 
i
 Education will prioritize Asthma, pest prevention, lead poisoning prevention and maintenance 



2 LETTER FROM EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR

3 GHHI/FIRST BOOK PARTNERSHIP

3 DWEJ GREEN JOBS PROGRAM 
GRADUATE PROFILE

4 POLICYMAKERS

7 JOHNS HOPKINS SCHOOL OF 
NURSING’S AGING IN PLACE 
RESEARCH STUDY

  A MAGAZINE OF THE GREEN & HEALTHY HOMES INITIATIVE

HEALTHY HOMES, 
HAPPY FAMILIES

Pictured here is Eddy Soto, of Eddy Soto’s Construction, a 
contractor with the GHHI Providence Neighborhood Inno-
vation Pilot. Turn to page 2 to learn more about the first 
year of this site.

 Volume I / Issue I



2

Letter from Executive Director
Welcome to the first edition of the Green & Healthy Homes 
Initiative’s Healthy Homes, Happy Families magazine.  In 
this issue, you will learn about the first year of our GHHI 
Providence site, federal healthy housing policy develop-
ments, lead legislation in Maryland, a GHHI Detroit program 
graduate, and our new partnership with First Book. 

In the fall, we launched our new website: www.ghhi.org. It 
in many ways represents the evolution over the past 25 
years of our work at the Coalition to End Childhood Lead 
Poisoning, now known as the Green & Healthy Homes Initia-
tive. In response to the growing need for a comprehensive 
approach to improve health outcomes and stabilize com-
munities, the Coalition launched GHHI in 2008 to integrate 

home-based environmental health hazard intervention ser-
vices with energy efficiency and weatherization efforts. We 
are marking our 25th anniversary with the publication of a 
retrospective, which will be made available later this year.

Through our work, we will continue to demonstrate the tre-
mendous health, economic and social benefits of investing 
in healthy housing. 

Ruth Ann Norton

SITE PROFILE: GHHI Providence Completes Important Milestone

By: Mark A. Kravatz, GHHI Providence 
Outcome Broker

With the completion of its Providence 
Neighborhood Innovation Pilot, a 
Green & Healthy Homes Initiative 
program, the City of Providence 
expanded the depth and quality of its 
housing intervention work. 

This spring Mayor Angel Tavares and 
Rhode Island Foundation President 
Neil Steinberg hosted a breakfast to 
mark the completion of a major mile-
stone for GHHI Providence. More than 
60 federal, state and local agency 
and organizational representatives 
gathered to learn about the City’s 
inaugural GHHI program. 

Providence’s Department of Plan-
ning and Development led efforts to 
complete housing renovations in 135 
homes in the Valley and Olneyville 

neighborhoods of the city. GHHI 
Providence braided funds at the local 
level from HUD’s Office of Healthy 
Homes and Lead Hazard Control, 
Rhode Island State Office of Energy 
Resources, the Rhode Island Founda-
tion and the Open Society Founda-
tions to deliver coordinated services 
to complete the housing interventions 
in a highly efficient manner. 

Through GHHI, income eligible Provi-
dence residents experienced a more 
efficient and effective way to receive 
vital housing intervention resources. 
The streamlined process includes:  a 
comprehensive application that quali-
fies participants for several housing 
intervention programs at once; a 
health, safety and energy efficiency 
audit; and three separate GHHI resi-
dent education visits that provided 
important information and training on 
housing maintenance behavior. 

GHHI Providence partnered with 
Amos House to train under-skilled 
men and women in the field of 
health, safety, pre-weatherization and 
weatherization services. The pilot 
also featured a neighborhood cam-
paign to engage the community; con-
tractor and resident educator training 
and development; and the utilization 
of data to make key program deci-
sions.  These components provided 
key learned lessons and have set a 
strong foundation for future GHHI 
work in Providence. 

More than 20 local Minority Business 
Enterprise (MBE) contractors partici-
pated in an intensive training and 
certification process, which provided 
an opportunity for contractors to 
diversify their skills and knowledge 
required to make firms eligible to 
provide GHHI rehab services. For 
some of the contractors, the GHHI 
experience has changed their lives 
and work. Take Mr. Eddy Soto of Eddy 
Soto’s Construction, for example. 
“This program makes me see things 
in a different way. It is more than a 
job. It’s helping people help them-
selves. A lot of people are being 
positively impacted. They know that 
what is happening in their house will 
help them in the future.”

Continued on Page 6

Cover photo: AS220/PhotoMem 
This page: top photo: Copyright: © 2012 André Chung/all rights reserved |bottom: AS220/PhotoMem



3visit us at: www.greenandhealthyhomes.org

GHHI and First Book Partnership Launches in Baltimore

By: Beth Bingham, GHHI Director 
of Communications and Strategic 
Development

GHHI and First Book have joined 
forces to help improve the health and 
academic outcomes for Baltimore’s 
most vulnerable children.  Both 
organizations have been working for 
decades to address independently 
hindrances to a child’s ability to 
succeed in the classroom — GHHI 
by addressing home-based health 

hazards and First Book by elevating 
the quality of education by making 
new, high-quality books available on 
an ongoing basis.

This summer, GHHI and First Book 
will launch a pilot program to provide 
brand new books to children with 
asthma or lead poisoning who live in 
homes receiving health and safety 
renovations provided through GHHI 
Baltimore, where the healthy homes 
organization is headquartered. The 

pilot will span two years, placing at 
least eight grade-level appropriate 
books each in the hands of hun-
dreds of children throughout the city. 
The GHHI environmental education 
specialists will provide to parents and 
caregivers the books and materials 
developed by First Book about read-
ing and literacy to guide them in their 
efforts to help their children develop 
strong reading skills.

Through this partnership, GHHI and 
First Book will work to turn the page 
on a story of unhealthy homes and 
academic struggles to one of healthy 
homes and successful futures for 
Baltimore-area schoolchildren. 

For more information about First 
Book, visit www.firstbook.org. To 
sign up with First Book, visit www.
firstbook.org/register. Be sure to 
check www.ghhi.org in the coming 
months and future issues of Healthy 
Homes, Happy Families for more 
information on the GHHI-First Book 
partnership.

Meet Donitra Scott, DWEJ Green Jobs Program Graduate

By: Phallan K. Davis, GHHI Communi-
cations and Marketing Associate 

Creating jobs and training the next 
generation of “green” workers is a 
fundamental focus of GHHI. With a 
grant from the Open Society Founda-
tions’ Poverty Alleviation Fund, GHHI 
has provided funding to nine GHHI 
sites to deliver training programs and 
job placement services for under-
employed and unemployed workers 
and formerly incarcerated individuals. 
In Detroit, the grant is implemented 
by Detroiters Working for Environmen-
tal Justice’s (DWEJ) through its Green 
Jobs Training Program. 

DWEJ works with communities to 
create cleaner, healthier and safer 
neighborhoods. The Green Jobs 
Training Program, which runs for 
12 weeks, transforms the lives of 
Detroiters and their communities 
through sustainable, environmentally 
just and green job practices. One of 
its graduates, Donitra Scott, is one of 
the people whose life was enriched 
by the program. 

A longtime member of the Bricklayers 
and Allied Craftsman Local 1 Union, 
Donitra is the owner of Dee’s Impres-
sive Décor and More, a tile instal-
lation company. Family members 
encouraged her to take part in the 
Green Jobs Training Program.

Here students are encouraged to 
think past bricks and mortar. The 
initial weeks of the program focused 
on self-evaluation exercises. 

Donitra relayed, “We conversed about 
things that we don’t talk about in 
daily life. I wasn’t expecting this since 
it was a construction-based program. 
This [component] was something to 
make you look at yourself differently. 
Where do you see yourself in a few 
years? How do you feel about spiri-
tuality? Things that help define you 
as a person. We covered things that 
necessitated deep conversation.”

During the program, Donitra earned 
her state lead and asbestos licenses, 
First Aid certifications and learned 
the basics of construction, just to 
name a few of her accomplishments.

Continued on Page 6

Photo provided by First Book. 



4

By: Michael McKnight, GHHI Senior 
Policy Officer

Over the past 12 months, GHHI has 
advocated strongly on Capitol Hill 
and at The White House in support of 
funding for federal programs that pro-
mote green, healthy and safe hous-
ing, including HUD’s Healthy Homes 
and Lead Hazard Control Programs, 
Energy’s Weatherization Assistance 
Program and various programs at 
Health and Human Services.  Ad-
ditionally, GHHI has been actively 
building support for funding from 
various federal innovation programs 
by demonstrating the efficiencies and 
cost benefits created by investing in 
healthy housing programs.  A couple 
of current policy priorities include:   

1. Restoring full funding to support 
the CDC Healthy Homes and Lead 
Poisoning Prevention Program.  
Over the last two years, the pro-
gram was hit by a 93 percent cut, 
forcing the closure of critical lead 
poisoning prevention programs in 
states and cities throughout the 
US.  Currently, there is less than 
$2 million to support activities 
such as surveillance and case 
management nationally. This  im-
portant program not only provides 
critical surveillance to help set 
resource targeting but it connects 
poisoned children as early as pos-
sible to medical and case man-
agement services, relocation and 
lead remediation. There is modest 
progress in the President’s FY14 
budget that asks for $5 million 
but that is clearly not enough to 

provide support to state and local 
programs.  GHHI is working with 
the Conference of Mayors in sup-
port of their resolution calling on 
The White House and Congress to 
fully fund this program. 

2. GHHI is working for the passage of 
the proposed Title X Amendments 
Act, introduced in February by Sen. 
Jack Reed (D-R.I.) and Rep. Louise 
Slaughter (D-N.Y.), which expands 
HUD’s grant making ability  to ad-
dress home-based hazards beyond 
lead, including indoor air quality 
issues, trip/fall hazards, asthma 
triggers, mold and pests.  

In February, the Federal Interagency 
Healthy Homes Work Group (HHWG), 
released Advancing Healthy Hous-
ing, - A Strategy for Action, which laid 
a pathway for federal action over the 
next several years.  GHHI provides 
regular updates for the HHWG on the 
work in our 16 sites and identifies 
innovative program design, needed 
policy changes and new opportunities 
to achieve the vision of the Strategy 
for Action.  

GHHI was specifically mentioned by 
HUD Secretary Shaun Donovan when 
he announced the Strategy, calling it 
“an important partner in the future 
of healthy housing in America.” GHHI 
is also included in the Strategy as a 
best practice for building a collabora-
tive approach for efficient integra-
tion of public and private support 
to achieve healthy, safe and energy 
efficient housing. 

GHHI policy staff will continue to 
advocate for legislation and programs 
that help families in a smarter and 
more efficient way.  

photo, top right: Copyright: © 2012 André Chung/all rights reserved

Policymakers

0

8

16

24

32

40

FY06 FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12

PR
O

G
R

A
M

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

 L
EV

EL
 IN

 M
IL

LI
O

N
S

FISCAL YEAR

CDC Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program



5visit us at: www.greenandhealthyhomes.org

2013 Maryland Lead Legislation Landscape
Shakétta A. Denson, Esq., GHHI Fam-
ily Advocacy Attorney

The Maryland legislature heard seven 
major lead bills during the 2013 ses-
sion. The bills ranged from liability 
protection to 1950-78 built houses 
being categorized as “affected 
properties.”  Maryland’s legislative 
sessions take place January through 
April. Most lead paint bills in Mary-
land are heard by The Environmen-
tal Matters Committee, chaired by 
Delegate Maggie McIntosh (D-District 
43).  

Of all the lead bills, only HB303, the 
“Task Force to Study Point of Care 
Testing for Lead Poisoning,” passed. 
HB303 empowers the state to create 
a task force to investigate the feasibil-
ity of testing children for blood lead 
levels in the doctor’s office at their 
appointment, as opposed to travel-
ing to special lab sites.  In Maryland, 
blood lead level for children ages 0-6 
are tested at an average rate of 21 
percent. Part of the issue is parents 
do not have the means or access to 
get to a testing site.  Making test-
ing available in the doctor’s office 
will help increase the testing rate, 
preventing higher blood lead levels 
through an intervention plan.    

Other bills of note: HB754, 924 and 
1299 were all designed to revoke leg-
islation currently in place to protect 
Maryland families.  These bills would 

have brought back the Qualified Offer 
and removed houses constructed 
from 1950-78 from the “affected 
properties” list.  Children are at an 
80 percent risk of being poisoned in 
a home built during 1950-60; and, in 
2011, the Qualified Offer was struck 
down as unconstitutional for taking 
away rights to sue based on lead 
poisoning in exchange for relocation 
and medical bill payments.  These 
bills would have taken Maryland 
backward. GHHI, along with our part-
ners and families, worked vigorously 
to prevent the passage of these bills 
and they all received unfavorable re-
ports from the Environmental Matters 
committee and did not proceed to the 
Senate.  

Unfortunately, HB1067 also received 
an unfavorable report, which was not 
what we had hoped. It would have 
lowered the elevated blood level at 
which an owner of an affected prop-
erty is required to satisfy the modified 
risk reduction standard and when a 
local health department is required to 
give notice from 10 µg/dl to 5 µg/dl 
in Maryland.  Adopting this measure 
would have meaningfully advanced 
the focus on preventing and put Mary-
land in line with federal guidelines. 

GHHI and our partners across the 
state continue to work to get the mes-
sage out about primary prevention, 
lead safe work practices, tenants’ 
rights and the importance of living in 
a healthy home.  

Making testing available 
in the doctor’s office will 
help increase the testing 
rate, preventing higher 
blood lead levels through 
an intervention plan.

Ask an Expert
Bashirah 
Moore, En-
vironmental 
Health Educa-
tor

At GHHI we 
have leading 
experts on 
lead safety, 

environmental health, family advoca-
cy, tenant’s rights, energy efficiency, 
home safety issues, pest control and 
more. They have provided several 
answers to frequently asked ques-
tions on this page. If you don’t see 
what you’re looking for, send us your 
questions at info@ghhi.org.

Our master bath has two windows that 
bring in a lot of light but they are 

the type that don’t open. I am 
thinking about changing out 
the windows to the kind that 

open so we have better ventilation 
in the bathroom. Would that lend itself 
to keeping the mold and mildew build-
up down since we would probably have 
fresh air venting out the bath?

Yes, installing windows that open is a 
great idea. Fresh air ventilation 

is really important in places 
like bathrooms, kitchens, 
laundry rooms and base-

ments to prevent the growth 
of mold and mildew.  Installing vents 
with fresh air returns are a great step 
to a healthier home as well.

How do I know if I have lead paint in my 
house? It dates back to the 1930s 

so I assume I do but what’s the 
best way to check and see?

An important question, es-
pecially if there are young children 

who live in or regularly visit 
your home (there are over 
500,000 kids poisoned by 
lead every year in the US). 

Continued on Page 7

Q

Q

A

A



6

DWEJ Continued from Page 3. 

“The lead and asbestos trainings 
were very important,” Donitra shared. 
“I have been in a union for seven 
years and they are [just] implement-
ing these standards now. I feel like I 
got a head start. It makes you a more 
valuable asset to a company to have 
these types of trainings. Overall, the 
certificates and licenses that I earned 
are very important to me and added 
to my career. ”

She had been working in the con-
struction field for some time before 
the DEWJ program. But, according to 
Donitra, the program “opened doors 
for me as far going down a different 
path and doing it on my own.” She 
found it gratifying when a classmate 
who has owned his own construction 
business for two decades compli-
mented her on her tile installation 
work.

Ever one to pay it forward, Donitra 
hired one of her DWEJ classmates as 
her apprentice.

She said, “It meant a lot to be able to 
help someone else. He helped with a 
little bit of everything as an appren-
tice to a journeyman in the field.”

Apart from beautifying places and 
spaces, Donitra is doing her part to 
create a better Detroit in another 
fashion. 

Her apprentice is also her business 
partner in her Better Days Global 
nonprofit, which is a charity that she 
founded to instill good morals and 
values in the kids that she hopes to 
reach.  Donitra said, “The main focus 
of the charity is that the kids learn 
to respect themselves first, and then 
they will learn to respect their com-
munity and people around them.”

Given her background in construc-
tion, Donitra doesn’t imagine her life 

would be much different had she not 
been in the DWEJ program. But it 
did make an indelible impact on her 
personally. 

“The program gave me more depth 
and made me think a little differently. 
It made me realize that there are 
other opportunities out there and I 
can seize them if I put my mind to it. 
You’re able to meet people who have 
faith in you.” 

As what’s next for Donitra, her com-
pany will not be far from her mind but 
she is also going to focus more on 
her nonprofit. This Donitra says she is 
“more passionate about.”

She said, “I want to get my company 
up and running. But the nonprofit is 
where my heart is.”

If you are interested in working with 
Dee’s Impressive Décor and More, 
Donitra can be reached at 313 -346-
2266 and dees3188@gmail.com.

Providence Continued from Page 2. 

Retooling Providence’s contractor 
workforce to meet higher quality and 
standards of work has helped to en-
sure that clients receive high-quality 
interventions as well as provide vital 
business opportunities for contrac-
tors who have been suffering from a 
slow housing rehab economy.

Most important, the GHHI Provi-
dence Neighborhood Innovation Pilot 
has provided essential intervention 
upgrades that will make an immedi-
ate and long-term impact on those 
served. As stated by program partici-
pant Mike Brown, “I wasn’t aware the 

house was completely hollow. I didn’t 
realize how much the insulation 
would make a difference. My heating 
bill is significantly less.” When asked 
about the impact that this program 
makes on the community, Mr. Brown 
responded, “It definitely has an 
impact on the community as a whole. 
These houses are old. My house was 
built in 1920. These houses need 
this kind of work done. I hope that 
this program is successful in getting 
the word out and letting more people 
know about it.” 

The GHHI Providence Neighborhood 
Innovation Pilot has effectively exhib-
ited that the coordination of multiple 

organizations and the braiding of 
resources yields a higher return on 
investments that results in healthy, 
safer, and more efficient homes for 
our low income communities. The 
City of Providence in partnership with 
other community agencies is actively 
working towards expanding the model 
to other communities throughout the 
City. 

If you’d like to learn more about GHHI 
Providence and how you can become 
involved, contact me, Mark Kravatz, 
at 401-400-8425 via e-mail at  
mkravatz@ghhi.org. 



7visit us at: www.greenandhealthyhomes.org

Expert Continued from Page 5.

Since your home was built before 
1978, there is a good chance it has 
lead-based paint.  The best way 
to check for lead is to hire a certi-
fied Lead Risk Assessor.  They will 
perform an X-ray flourescent test for 
leaded surfaces as well as test for 
leaded dust.  Lead dust that forms 
from chipping, peeling or flaking lead-
based paint is actually the main path-
way for poisoning of young children.  
One caution, if you see chipping paint 
(often looks like old alligator skin) - 
do not dry scrape it!  To learn safe 
ways to address lead hazards in your 
home visit www.ghhi.org and go to 
“Lead and Other Hazards.”

“Could mice and roaches be 
causing my child’s asthma 

symptoms?”

Absolutely! Household pests 
are a very common trigger 
for most people with asthma.  

In order to find out if your child 
has an allergy to mice and roaches, 
the best thing to do is to get an al-
lergy test from your doctor.  

Integrated Pest Management (IPM) is 
a great way to reduce the presence 
of both mice and roaches.  Some tips 
for IPM include:

1. Eliminate all food, water and shel-
ter opportunities for pests in your 
home.  Clutter is an easy way for 
pests to have hiding spots in your 
home. 

2. Seal any holes in the home the 
size of a dime or greater.  Use cop-
per mesh to fill the hole and apply 
caulk, foam, or concrete to be 
certain mice and rats cannot chew 
through it.

3. DON’T USE ROACH SPRAY! To treat 
your home for roaches use roach 
baits, boric acid (a thin applica-
tion), and roach gel as a green and 
healthy way to get rid of roaches. 

4. For pet owners be sure to pick up 
your pet’s food at night and cover it 
tightly or place it in the refrigerator.

Q

A

A Common-Sense Approach to Helping 
People Age in Place

By: Sarah L. Szanton 

Before 68–year-old Ms. V became 
involved with the CAPABLE program 
(described below), she was living with 
chronic bronchitis, depression and 
painful arthritis in a two-story row 
home in Baltimore with her home-
bound husband. It was difficult for 
Ms. V. to walk more than two blocks 
due to shortness of breath. Like many 
row homes in Baltimore, hers had no 
railings for her marble steps. Inside, 
her flooring was loose or torn in many 
areas and there was no railing on the 
stairs leading to her second floor. As 
if this didn’t make caring for herself a 
huge challenge, Ms. V also is the pri-
mary caregiver for her husband who 
is recovering from several strokes. 

When she was healthier, Ms. V had 
loved walking around a nearby reser-
voir for daily exercise. But when we 
met her, she rarely walked or went 
anywhere due to inability to get down 
the stairs. 

Luckily, she recently became part of 
a research study testing CAPABLE 
(Community Aging in Place, Advanc-
ing Better Living for Elders) which 
provides $1,000 of home safety 
repair and modifications, $200 in 
assistive devices, up to six occupa-
tional therapy visits and up to four 
nurse visits. Each of these resources 
is entirely directed by the participants 
based on her or his functional goals. 

In Ms. V’s case, she wanted to be 
able to walk for exercise and to go to 
church. Although it is in the medical 
system’s interest, the neighborhood’s 
interest and, most importantly, in Ms. 
V’s interest to be able to be as func-
tional as possible, traditional medical 
care tends to focus just on the issues 
like bronchitis and arthritis. It ignores 
the ways that her housing—and ability 
to function within it—affect and are 
affected by those conditions. 

CAPABLE is based out of the Johns 
Hopkins University School of Nurs-
ing (www.nursing.jhu.edu/capable) 
currently funded by the Robert Wood 
Johnson Foundation, the National 
Institutes of Health and the Centers 
for Medicare and Medicaid Services. 
Ms. V is part of a group testing the 
services to see whether this resource-
intensive program saves money over 
time. Through CAPABLE, she had her 
flooring fixed, railings put on her out-
side and inside steps, management 
for her pain medication, and strength 
and balance exercises. She is now 
better able to take care of herself and 
her husband. 

One thing we know for sure: People 
like Ms. V are starting to move more 
safely around their homes and neigh-
borhoods because we are addressing 
their housing and health at the same 
time. Healthy housing is an important 
component of aging at home. 

Sarah L. Szanton, PhD, CRNP, is an 
associate professor at the Johns Hop-
kins University School of Nursing and 
a Robert Wood Johnson Foundation 
Nurse Faculty Scholar.



About the Green 
& Healthy Homes 
Initiative 
The Green & Healthy Homes 
Initiative (founded as the 
Coalition to End Childhood 
Lead Poisoning) replaces 
stand-alone programs with 
a comprehensive strategy to 
improve health, economic 
and social outcomes for chil-
dren, families and seniors 
through a proven integrated 
housing intervention frame-
work. GHHI is supported by 
the U.S. Department of Hous-
ing and Urban Development, 
the Centers for Disease 
Control and Prevention, the 
U.S. Department of Energy, 
and national and local phi-
lanthropies.

Currently, there are 16 GHHI 
sites nationally: Atlanta, 
Baltimore, Buffalo, Chicago, 
Cleveland, Denver, Detroit, 
Dubuque, Flint, Jackson, 
New Haven, Oakland, Phila-
delphia, Providence, Salt 
Lake, and San Antonio. The 
organization plans to add 25 
new sites over the next three 
years. 

GHHI Offices:
Baltimore, Maryland  
2714 Hudson Street 
Baltimore, MD 21224

Washington, DC 
1612 K Street NW Suite 902 
Washington, DC 20006

Providence, Rhode Island  
460 Harris Avenue Suite 202 
Providence, RI 02909

For more information about GHHI, including how to bring the Initiative to a community to near you, please call 410-534-6447 
or 800-370-5323. Or send an e-mail to info@ghhi.org. 

Photo: Copyright: © 2012 André Chung/all rights reserved



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

DRAFT ORDER  

 
ORDERED, that the City Council that the City Manager be authorized to sign the Green and Healthy Homes 

Initiative Compact as recommended by the Community Development staff. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City Council 

Workshop Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Discussion on the proposed Municipal/Education Capital Improvement Plan for FY2014-2015.  

 

Information: In accordance with the City Charter, Section 8.9, a public hearing on the CIP was held on March 

20, 2014 during the Council Meeting. In accordance with the City Charter, Section 8.9 B the Council needs to 

adopt the capital program on or before the last day of the last month of the current fiscal year.   

 

 

Financial: This is a presentation on the Capital Improvement Plan for FY 14 -15 that has been amended since 

originally presented. The changes are as follows: MDOT Match has been increased $550,000 for an MPI in New 

Auburn to dovetail with New Auburn Trans. Plan that is requested for funding at ATRC for $1,100,000; a message sign 

board $25,000 and side dump body  $38,700, for Public Works and a Generator for South Main Street Fire Station 

$25,000,  have been added because they were not funded through the operational budget; $475,000 for replacement of the 

Tower Truck has been removed since the EMS Transport budget will be able to fund the Lease Purchase of a Quint (the 

first lease payment will not be due until 2016); Festival Plaza canopies $60,000 and the repurposing of Ingersoll Arena 

$490,000. 

When you accept this plan you are not approving any expenditures at that time. The amount that will be funded 

from the plan will be discussed and approved at a future Council meeting. 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Workshop discussion. 

 

Previous Meetings and History: 2/10/2014 workshop 

 

Attachments:  

Amended CIP List 

Council Workshop Date:  June 2, 2014 Item  C 

Author:   Jill M. Eastman, Finance Director 



Description
 Bonded General 

Fund 

 Operating Not 
Funded In 

Budget 
Recommended 
Bonded Total 

Engineering Reconstruction 1,100,000$             1,100,000$          
Engineering Reclamation/Resurfacing 1,000,000$             1,000,000$          
Engineering Major Drainage 100,000$                100,000$             
Engineering MDOT Match 1,100,000$             1,100,000$          
Engineering Retaining Walls 75,000$                   75,000$               
Engineering Sidewalks 150,000$                150,000$             
Engineering Bridge Maintenance 75,000$                   75,000$               
PW-Facilities Heating Oil Tank Conversion 25,000$                   25,000$               
PW-Facilities Energy Efficiency Upgrades (Lighting) 120,000$                120,000$             
Public Works Replace Street Sweeper (sand and debris removal from roadways) 236,250$                236,250$             
Public Works Replace 7 yard plow trucks (plowing/sanding and roadway maintenance) 180,000$                180,000$             
Public Works Replace 12 yard plow trucks  (plowing/sanding and roadway maintenance) 235,000$                235,000$             
Public Works Replace front end loader (loading materials and snow removal) 255,000$                255,000$             
Public Works Purchase message sign board -$                              25,000$             25,000$               
Public Works Side Dump Body/Hydraulic Pump -$                              38,700$             38,700$               
Airport Aircraft Hangar Purchase -$                              -$                          
Economic Development Mechanics Savings Bank-Minot Ave Project -$                              -$                          
Economic Development South Goff Extension to Elm St -$                              -$                          
Economic Development Minot Ave Corridor Analysis and Design -$                              -$                          
Planning Dangerous Building Demolition 150,000$                150,000$             
Fire Generator for South Main Street Station 25,000$             25,000$               
Fire Vehicle Replacement, FPO Vehicle (replacement) 24,000$             -$                          
Fire Vehicle Replacement, DC Vehicle (new) 24,000$             -$                          
Fire Tower One Replacement (1/2 of Cost, balance to be bonded in FY16) 475,000$                -$                          
PW-Facilities Replace Generator Transfer Switch 25,000$                   25,000$               
Planning Comprehensive Plan Property Acquisiton Program 400,000$                400,000$             
Parks Replace Playground-Pettengill Park -$                              -$                          
Parks Purchase Infield groomer -$                              -$                          
Library Masonry Repair 47,167$                   47,167$               
Library Carpet Replacement 26,783$             -$                          
Recreation Renovate Softball Fields 72,000$                   72,000$               
Planning New Auburn Riverfront Park-Bridge to Bridge -$                              -$                          
Parks Replace Festival Plaza Canopies 60,000$                   60,000$               
Recreation Repurpose Ingersoll Arena 490,000$                490,000$             
PW-Facilities Mechanic's Pit Conversion -$                              -$                          
Contingency Contingency 34,518$                   34,518$               
School Department School Department 2,181,365$             2,181,365$          

8,586,300$             163,483$           8,200,000$         TOTAL CIP

CITY OF AUBURN
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN

CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION
FY 15  Bonds





City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     X Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Maine Municipal Association LPC (Legislative Policy Committee) Nomination  

 

Information: Currently the City has 1 permanent appointment to the LPC which is held by City Manager 

Clint Deschene with Assistant City Manager Howard Kroll serving as the alternate.  

 

The other seat that the City of Auburn can nominate for is comprised of communities in Senate District 20 

(Auburn, Mechanic Falls, Minot, New Gloucester and Poland).  

 

Mayor LaBonte has indicated that he would be willing to serve on this committee. I strongly endorse his 

nomination and recommend that the City Council nominate him to serve in that capacity.  

 

 

Financial: NONE 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Nomination and vote 

 

Previous Meetings and History: N/A 

 

 

Attachments:  

 

Nomination form- WILL REQUIRE SIGNATURE OF THE NOMINATOR AND MAYOR LABONTE 

INDICATING HIS ACCEPTANCE OF THE NOMINATION.  

 

Nomination overview 

Council Meeting Date:  June 2, 2014 Order  42-06022014* 

    
Author:   Clinton Deschene 









Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER 42-06022014 

 
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby nominates Jonathan LaBonté and appoints Clint Deschene as the 

Maine Municipal Association’s Legislative Policy Committee members for the 2014-2016 term. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject:   Transfer of Forfeiture Asset – William Tardif. 

 

Information:  

In March of 2014, Auburn Police officers conducted a bail search at a downtown residence of a known 

convicted drug trafficker. Subsequent to the search of the residence and the individual, evidence of drug 

manufacturing, use and sale was located. 

 

Drugs seized consisted of small amount of marijuana and crack cocaine.  In addition, $660 in US currency was 

seized as suspected proceeds of the illegal sale of drugs. 

 

The suspect was arrested on Unlawful Possession of Schedule Drugs; Class C and Violations of Conditions of 

Release; Class E. 

 

 

Financial: The State of Maine, Office of the Attorney General, seeks to transfer $660.00 U.S. Currency, to the 

Auburn Police Department. 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Vote to accept transfer of $660.00 in U.S. Currency. 

 

Previous Meetings and History:  N/A 

 

Attachments:  

 

 Memo to City Manager   

Council Meeting Date:  June 2, 2014 Order  43-06022014* 

Author:   Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., Chief of Police 



Phillip L. Crowell 
Chief  of  Police 
 
Jason D. Moen 
Deputy Chief 
 
Rita P. Beaudry 
Executive Assistant 

 

Memorandum 
 

To: Clinton Deschene, City Manager 

From: Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., Chief of Police 

Date: May 28, 2014 

Re: Criminal Forfeiture Funds – William Tardif 

 

The Auburn Police Department seeks to accept the following Criminal forfeited assets: 

 Superior Court Criminal Docket No. CR-14-273 – William Tardif   $660.00  

In March of 2014, Auburn Police officers conducted a bail search at a downtown 
residence of a known convicted drug trafficker. Subsequent to the search of the 
residence and the individual, evidence of drug manufacturing, use and sale was located. 

 
Drugs seized consisted of small amount of marijuana and crack cocaine.  In addition, 
$660 in US currency was seized as suspected proceeds of the illegal sale of drugs. 

 
The suspect was arrested on Unlawful Possession of Schedule Drugs; Class C and 
Violations of Conditions of Release; Class E. 

 

Auburn Police Department 
 

6 0  CO U R T  S T R E E T  •  A U B U R N ,  M A I N E  •  0 4 2 1 0  
P H O N E :  2 0 7 . 3 3 3 . 6 6 5 0  •  W WW . A U B U R N P D . C O M  

A D M I N I S T R A T I O N  F A X :  2 0 7 . 3 3 3 . 3 8 5 5 •  P A T R O L / R E CO R D S  F A X :  2 0 7 . 3 3 3 . 3 8 5 6  



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER 43-06022014 

 

ORDERED, that the municipality of Auburn, Maine, by and through its municipal officers, does 

hereby grant approval pursuant to 15 M.R.S.A.  5824(3) &  5826(6) to the transfer of Defendant 

(William Tardif) in Rem, or any portion thereof ($660.00 U.S. Currency) on the grounds that the 

Auburn Police Department did make a substantial contribution to the investigation of this or a 

related criminal case. 

 

WHEREFORE, the municipality of Auburn, Maine does hereby approve of the transfer of the 

Defendant (William Tardif) in Rem, or any portion thereof ($660.00 U.S. Currency), pursuant to 

15 M.R.S.A.             §5826(6) by vote of the Auburn municipal legislative body on or about 

June 2, 2014. 















AUBURN FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 
 
 
 
       

    
 
 

550 Minot Avenue 
Auburn ME 04210 

 (207)333-6633/Fax (207)784-3283 
 
 
 
 
 

May 22, 2014 
 
 
 
Mr. Clint Deschene, City manager 
City of Auburn Maine 
60 Court Street 
Auburn, Maine 04210 
 
Dear Clint, 
 
In light of the recent council decision to not fund the Deputy Chief of EMS position as part 
of the proposed EMS transport program, please consider the following: 
 
I am hard pressed to find a way to recommend moving forward with this program without 
the Deputy Chief of EMS. My concern is shared by those within the department most 
intimately involved in both the development of this program, and who also possess an 
extensive EMS program management background. We speak as one in recognizing the peril 
that not having this position places the success of the program in. 
 
Please know that I am available to meet with and discuss the Deputy Chief of EMS 
responsibilities and duties with any council member who may wish to have additional 
information on this position. Given that even the smallest of dedicated EMS transport 
providers have a person or persons dedicated to the management of the program, and the 
increasingly complex world of EMS program and systems management, the City of Auburn 
cannot afford any less dedicated position. 
 
The program as developed and presented to council was a “total package” and not 
designed nor able to sustain elements of the program going unfunded with the expectation 
of success. Our citizens expect and deserve that this program be delivered at the level we 
have promised, and not compromised. 
 
Given the late hour of the budget process and removal of the Deputy Chief of EMS, we are 
left to try and find creative funding options in an already stripped to the bone budget. 
However, due to a very deliberate sharpening of the pencil and determined negotiations, 
we have been able to bring in the total cost for ambulances at a savings under predicted 
budget. We are also willing to utilize some of our reserve as well to in effect, fund the 
Deputy Chief of EMS position without impacting the current budget as approved by council. 



 
Page 2 
May 28, 2014 
 
 
I remain available to discuss any further options that see us implement this program as 
designed and in the best interest of the citizens of Auburn. 
 
Attached for your consideration is the DRAFT version of the Deputy Chief of EMS job 
description. Also included are projections on the tax rate with and without the EMS 
program.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
Frank Roma 
Fire Chief, City of Auburn 
 
 
 
 



 Mil Rate 

as of 

05/19/14 

 $ Change 

from FY 

14 

CURRENT WITH EMS TRANSPORT

Tax Rate

City 11.68$     (0.08)$     

School 8.05$       0.39$      

County 1.02$       0.01$      

Total 20.75$     0.32$      

WITH NO EMS TRANSPORT

Tax Rate

City 11.85$     0.09$      

School 8.05$       0.39$      

County 1.02$       0.01$      

Total 20.92$     0.49$      

CHANGE 

Tax Rate

City 0.18$       0.18$      

School $ $

EMS TRANSPORT IMPACT ON TAX RATE

School ‐$         ‐$        

County ‐$         ‐$        

Total 0.18$       0.18$      

$0.18 Increase in property tax rate.



  
 

Revised: 5/28/14  “Superior Services at an Affordable Cost” Page | 1  
 
 

City of Auburn 

Job Title: Deputy Fire Chief (EMS) Reports to: Fire Chief 
Grade:  Supervises:  All Ranks Below 

Department: Fire Revised: 05/14/2014 
This job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the employer and the employee, and it is subject to 
change by the employer as the needs of the employer and requirements of the job change. The essential functions listed are 
intended only as illustrations of the various types of work that may be performed. The omission of specific statements of duties 
does not exclude them from the position if the work is similar, related, or a logical assignment to the position.    

I. Job Summary 

The person in this position must possess all of the necessary skills, abilities, licenses, and certifications 
to fulfill the responsibilities and obligations of the Deputy Fire Chief of Emergency Medical 
Services (EMS) function as it relates to all local, state, and federal guidelines. The work involves a 
variety of professional and technical duties relative to the management and administration of the 
department including working closely with the Fire Chief in carrying out the Fire Department’s goals 
relating to the provision of emergency medical services, occupational health and safety, and 
compliance with local, state, and federal mandates.  

The employee is expected to use management activities such as planning, organizing, and evaluating 
as these activities relate to the employee’s scope of work. In addition, this position requires adaptable 
skills and abilities, the use of independent judgment, and a supportive organizational attitude. Finally, 
work outcomes need to be consistent and supportive of departmental mission statements, 
administrative goals and objectives, and the overall corporate culture. 

II. Essential Functions 

• Direct oversight of the Emergency Medical Services Division including the provision of pre-
hospital care, maintenance of equipment, patient care reporting  

• Conduct research, analysis, problem solving, and articulating findings as expected with scope of 
work 

• Follows service plans for employees and customers in accord with administrative goals and 
objectives and overall corporate culture 

• Follow all applicable administrative SOGs/SOPs 
• Reviews division revenues and expenditures with the Fire Chief on a monthly basis. Identifies and 

communicates negative trends in spending 
• Identifies and assists with the implementation of systems for record identification and record 

retention in accord with local, state, and federal regulations, including freedom of access 
regulations 

• Follows the chain of command in accord with administrative rules, goals and, objectives 
• Immediately reports to supervisor any activities witnessed, or made aware of, that violates city 

policies including, but not limited to, safety and health hazards, workplace violence, sexual 
harassment, as well as any waste, fraud or abuse of city property or equipment 

• Shares information with department manager of relative local, state, and federal laws that may 
affect employees or other departments 

• Possesses and/or develops the necessary skills and abilities to effectively and successfully 
administers management activities appropriate to the scope of work for the Deputy Fire Chief 
including, but not limited to, developing/directing, staffing/recruiting, coordinating, budgeting, 
capital planning, and facilities management, data and financial analysis, and professional reporting 

• Performs other duties as assigned. 

 

III.                                                               DRAFT 



  
 

Revised: 5/28/14  “Superior Services at an Affordable Cost” Page | 2  
 
 

City of Auburn 

IV. Duties and Responsibilities 

• Assist in the development of standard operating procedures and policies of the EMS division; 
• Assist in the development of the Fire Department annual budget and monitor division expenditures 
• Assist in writing performance evaluations for EMS providers 
• Serve as point of contact for records and PHI requests. 
• Conduct daily reviews of run sheets and patient care reports. 
• Serve as liaison between the department and the Medical Director. 
• Responsible for the planning and execution of the duties assigned to him/her by the Chief and 

maintain necessary records 
• Investigate alleged department violations relating to EMS delivery and prepare reports of findings 

for the Fire Chief 
• Make recommendations to the Chief regarding personnel actions such as promotions, demotions, 

disciplinary actions 
• Attempt to manage service delivery problems through the quality assurance/quality improvement 

process before disciplinary action must be taken 
• Participate in officer’s meetings  
• Serve as a Department Safety Officer on emergency scenes 
• Serve as Health and Safety Officer 
• Support the Fire Prevention Officer 
• Support Battalion Chiefs responsible for equipment, fleet and facilities maintenance 
• Adheres to all safety regulations, trains staff in safety regulations, oversees Fire Department 

Bureau of Labor Standards compliance, and reports known safety violations to City Safety 
Coordinator 

• Works effectively and productively with supervisors, co-workers, direct reports, mutual aid 
communities, City Council, business, industry and property owners in the community 

• Perform other duties pertaining to the Fire Department as the Chief may prescribe or assign 
 

V. Other Job Related Tasks 

• Provide pre-hospital care to the sick or injured 
• Conducts Quality assurance reviews and prescribes quality assurance plans 
• Works with the service medical director to identify training needs, community illness/injury 

trends, manage departmental issues relating to the delivery of care 
• Ensure that all service licenses, certifications are and other regulatory documents are in 

compliance 
• Serves as a point of contact and system manager for the Maine EMS run reporting program 
• Tracks and orders supplies 
• Ensures that diagnostic equipment is serviced and certified in accordance to schedules established 

by the manufacturer 
• Attends board or committee meeting conducted by local, regional, or state agencies or bodies 
• Coordinates EMS training with the department training officer 
• Ensure that cleaning, decontamination, and inspection requirements are adhered to  
• Annually reviews BLS compliance documents 
• Ensures that all employees have received annual compliance training 
• Develops and reviews that departmental risk management program 
• Investigates work place injuries and report’s findings to the Chief 
• Fill other command staff functions on emergency scenes 
• Deliver community education on health and safety related topics 

                                                                   DRAFT 



  
 

Revised: 5/28/14  “Superior Services at an Affordable Cost” Page | 3  
 
 

City of Auburn 

 
VI. Peripheral Duties 

• During the absence or disability of the Chief, the Deputy Chief will assume all of the Chief’s 
duties and powers. 

• Serve on various boards and committees that are of relevance to the department 
• Participate in research, planning or other functions as a stakeholder 

 
VII. Additional Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities 

Minimum Qualifications  
• Licensed as a Paramedic (or Advanced EMT ability to obtain a Paramedic license within 2 years) 
• Minimum of 5 years field experience as an advanced life support provider 
• Minimum of 2 years supervisory experience (preferably within a career fire or EMS agency) 
• Possess (or obtain within six months of hire) and remain current in ACLS, PALS or PEPP, PHTLS 

or BTLS any other certification programs required by the department 
• Possess or obtain within one year of hire Incident Safety Officer and Department Health and safety 

Officer Safety training  
• Experience with office suites or other types of office productivity computer programs 
• A valid State of Maine Driver’s license 

 
Preferred qualifications   
• Experience working within a fire based EMS system including NFPA certification as a firefighter   
• Pro-Board/IFSAC Fire Officer II 
• Pro-Board/IFSAC Instructor II 
• EMS Instructor/Coordinator 
• CPR, ACLS, PEPP or other certification program instructor  
• An associate’s degree or higher from an accredited institution of higher learning in a related field. 

Examples include but are not limited to Fire Science, Emergency Medical Services, Business 
Administration, or Public Administration 
 

VIII. Working Conditions/ Physical Requirements 

The work environment of this position includes: 
 
• Extensive knowledge and experience in firefighting equipment, methods and techniques, 

hydraulics, and fire prevention methods. Thorough knowledge of the rules and regulations of the 
department and fire prevention codes and ordinances. Thorough knowledge of the street system 
and geography of the Town. Thorough knowledge of the water supply and hydrant system of the 
Town. Ability to effectively direct, with good judgment, the operations and activities of personnel 
and equipment under emergency conditions. Ability to effectively work with, and maintain good 
working relationships with, other municipal officials, State and federal authorities and the general 
public. 

• Position requires sitting, standing, walking, reaching, twisting, turning, kneeling, bending, 
climbing and squatting in the performance of daily activities; also requires grasping, repetitive 
hand/finger movement, using keyboards and other office tools. 

• Work may be performed under typical emergency conditions consisting primarily of operations at 
fires, accidents, potential explosions, and hazardous emergencies. Work may be performed under 
stressful conditions, poor weather and during nighttime. Work may involve considerable personal 
danger, including exposure to fire, toxic substances, and other hazards. 

                                 DRAFT 



Sec. 14-252. Clerk's notification to council. 

As soon as the city clerk or designee receives an application to hold a mass gathering, the clerk shall 
give public notice by notifying the city council. Such notification shall appear as a formal communication 
on the agenda of the next regularly scheduled council meeting.  

(Ord. No. 38-02072011-05, att. § 24-200, 2-7-2011)  

 



1 

CITY OF AUBURN 

SPECIAL EVENT/MASS GATHERING APPLICATION 

For any Special Event on City property that will attract up to 1,000 people, or any outdoor 

event with continued attendance of 1,000 or more persons for 2 or more hours. 

******************************************** 

Applications must be submitted to the Clerk at least 45 days prior to the event if the 

gathering is expected to attract up to 5,000 people.  

Application must be submitted at least 90 days prior to the event if the gathering is 

expected to attract more than 5,000 people. 

SPONSOR INFORMATION 

Name of Sponsoring Organization: _________________________________________________ 

Name of Contact Person for Event: _________________________________________________ 

Title of Contact Person: __________________________________________________________

Mailing Address: _______________________________________________________________

Daytime Telephone: ____________________   Cell Phone: _____________________________

Email Address: _________________________________________________________________ 

Contact Name and Cell Phone Number DURING the Event: _____________________________ 

Is your organization incorporated as a non-profit organization? Yes _________ No ___________ 

Non-Profit Number: _____________________________________________________________

EVENT INFORMATION 

Name of Event: ________________________________________________________________ 

Type of Event (walk, festival, concert, etc.): _________________________________________ 

Date of Event: ________________________      Rain Date: _____________________________ 

Times of Event: Start Time including set-up: ________ Ending time including clean up: ______ 

Date received: _____________________ 

Date approved: ____________________ 

Liberty Festival / Independence Day Committee

Cathy McDonald

President 

POBox 97, Lewiston, ME  04240

786-3088 212-8227

liberty.festival@aol.com

Cathy McDonald - 212-8227

X

04-3358113

Liberty Festival

festival

July 3rd - 7th, 2014 July 3rd - 7th, 2014

7am 1am

    May 27, 2014



 2 

Actual Event Start Time: ________________   Actual Event End Time: ___________________              

 

Estimated Attendance: ___________________________________________________________ 

 

Location of Event: ______________________________________________________________ 

 

Have you held an event at this location within the last 12 months?  Yes_____ No _____ 

 

If the location is a city park, have you applied for use of the property with the Parks & 

Recreation Department and has your request been approved?  

Yes ____ No _____ Pending ____ Date submitted to the Recreation Department: ____________ 

 
TYPES OF PERMITS/PERMISSIONS NEEDED – PROVIDE AN ANSWER FOR EACH LINE:  

 

Permit Fee Permission/Permit Type YES NO NOT 

SURE 
Separate fee & 

application,  

conditions & 

restrictions may 

apply 

Banner across Court Street 

 

 
Non-profit groups only, $100 fee per week, 2 week maximum. First come first serve basis, 

proof of insurance required. 

   

Separate fee 

and permit 

possible 

FOOD – Will food or beverages be sold? If yes, list what types of food or 

beverages: 
 
Note - A food service license may be required and must be submitted 14 days prior to the 

event. 

   

Separate fee 

and permit  

possible 

NON-FOOD ITEMS – Will products be sold or given away (such as t-shirts, 

crafts, souvenirs, etc.)? If yes, list what items: 
 
Note - A peddler permit may be required and must be submitted 14 days prior to the event. 

   

N/A LIVE MUSIC – Will there be any outdoor musical performances?  If yes, 

please describe: 

 

   

N/A SOUND AMPLIFICATION – Will there be a microphone or speaker system 

to project sound? 

 

   

N/A ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES ARE NOT ALLOWED  

 

   

Separate fee 

and permit 

required 

CARNIVAL – Will carnival rides be offered? If yes, attach a copy of the state 

permit.  A city permit is required as well. 
   

Separate fee 

and permit 

required 

FIREWORKS – Will there be a fireworks display? If yes, a permit from the 

Fire Department is required. 
   

N/A PARADE – Will there be a parade?  If yes, describe route: 

 
Note – A permit from the Police Department is required. 

   

N/A RUN/WALK/CYCLE – Will event involve participants doing a walk-a-thon, 

road race, etc?   If yes, describe route: 
 

   

Separate 

permit 

required 

BURN PERMIT – Will there be any open flame such as a bon fire? If yes, 

describe activity: 
 

 

Note - A permit from the Fire Department is required. 

   

4pm 11pm

15,000

Great Falls, Festival Plaza and surrounding areas

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

 x

x

 x

 xPossible organized flag disposal ceremony

various vendor foods and beverages

t-shirts and novelties

musical entertainers in Great Falls plaza area



 3 

N/A TENT/CANOPY – Will you be setting up a tent or canopy? If yes, list 

number and sizes: 
 

   

Separate fee 

and permit 

required 

ELECTRICAL POWER/EQUIPMENT – Will electrically powered 

equipment be utilized, if so, provide a brief description of the equipment 

and the entity responsible for the installation of the electrical equipment? 

 

 

   

N/A ROAD/INTERSECTION CLOSURE – Will any roads need to be closed to 

accommodate your event? If yes, please list: 
 

   

N/A MAP/DIAGRAM – Is a map or diagram attached detailing this event and 

depicting the placement of such items as tables, tents, port-a-potties, stage, 

parking, food service areas, etc.?  This is a mandatory requirement for this 

application and must be included. 

 

   

N/A PARKING ACCOMODATIONS – What will be the anticipated need for 

parking and what is your parking plan? 
 

   

N/A TOILETS – Please list amount at event and/or nearest location: 

 

   

N/A WASTE DISPOSAL – Please list process and location: 

 

   

N/A HAND WASHING FACILITIES – Please list amount at event and/or 

nearest location: 

 

   

N/A POTABLE WATER – Please list amount at event and location: 

 

   

N/A FIRST AID FACILITIES – Please list location at event: 

 

   

$ _________ TOTAL FEE AMOUNT INCLUDED – Checks payable to the City of Auburn    

  

 

EVENT LIABILITY INSURANCE COVERAGE FOR EVENT 
For an event such as a walk-a-thon, race, festival, concert, etc. the City requires insurance coverage – general liability.  

The City of Auburn is to be named as additionally insured in regards to the event activities on that date. Once the event is 

approved, the Certificate of Insurance will need to be received at least 30 days before the event and before permits can be 

issued.  Please have the City of Auburn listed as additional insured on the Certificate of Insurance (minimum coverage 

$1,000,000 Bodily Injury or Death, per occurrence, and $300,000 Property Damage, per occurrence). It should contain a 

clause providing that the policy may not be cancelled by either party except upon not less than 30 days written notice to 

the City. Please have your insurance company fax a copy to: City Clerk 207-333-6623. 

 

DESCRIPTION OF EVENT – Please describe what will occur during your event 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

x

x

x

x

x

xCity provided trash cans and liners

10 regular units and 2 handicap units between Lew & Auburn

Great Falls plaza lots, Auburn City
Hall parking garage.  We will be manning donation requested lots.

Small pop-up canopy tents around vendors and 
staging areas.  Possible larger tent over stage area.

vending booths, musical equipment and stage lighting.  

Main Street, Court Street, Longley Bridge and Great Falls Plaza.

1 at port-a-potties and 1 portable at each vending 
station. x

x1 hook up from TD Bank

xUnited Ambulance and Auburn Fire at Great Falls Plaza

0

We will begin with set-up on 7/3 for the festival.  The festival will occur on 7/4th 

(rain date July 5th) and include fireworks, vendors and a variety of entertainers.

Clean up will be completed on 7/5 (rain date 7/6).



 4 

Signature of Applicant:   Printed Name:            Date Submitted: 

 

_____________________________  ______________________          _____________ 

 

Please note that you will be contacted by City Staff if you require additional permitting. 

 

Please return this completed application with diagram and any applicable fee to:  

 

MAIL:  City Clerk’s Office 

  60 Court Street, Suite 150 

  Auburn, ME 04210   

FAX:  207-333-6623  

EMAIL: sdallaire@auburnmaine.gov 

PHONE:  207-333-6600         

 

 

****FOR STAFF USE**** 

 
DEPARTMENT COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

DEPARTMENT APPROVE DENY DATE INITIALS 

Sanitarian/Health Inspector     

Code Officer/Land Use & Zoning     

Fire Department     

Police Department     

Public Works Department     

Recreation Department     

 

COMMENTS/CONDITIONS from any of the above departments: 

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

City Council Public Hearing date, if applicable: _______________________ 

 

License Approved/Denied: _______________        Date applicant notified: _________________ 

Cathy McDonald 5/27/14           Cathy McDonald



COURT ST

TU
R

N
ER

 ST

H
IG

H
 S

T

M
AI

N
 S

T

GREAT FALLS PLZ

M
E

C
H

A
N

IC
S

 R
O

W

MILLER ST

N
O

RT
H

 M
IL

LE
R

 S
T

HAMPSHIRE ST

LONGLEY MEMORIAL BRIDGE

TU
R

N
ER

 S
T

M
A

IN
 S

T 
NOT TO SCALE

1

2

3

4

5

6

Richard
Text Box
  PARKING

Richard
Text Box
    STAGE

Richard
Text Box
PYROTECHNICLAUNCHSITE

Richard
Text Box
second possible entertainment & vendor site

Richard
Text Box
VENDORS

Billy
Typewritten Text

Billy
Typewritten Text

Billy
Typewritten Text

Billy
Typewritten Text
 Naral's or   similar

Billy
Typewritten Text

Billy
Typewritten Text



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**          

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Zoning Text amendment to the Agricultural and Resource Protection Zone (ZOMA 1180-2013)  

     Second Reading Revision 
 

Information: The Planning Staff received a citizen petition from over 25 registered voters requesting to amend 

the City of Auburn’s zoning ordinance to allow for a residential unit to be transferred from a residentially zoned   

portion of a parcel to the Agricultural and Resource Protection portion of the property.  The proposed change 

would apply to properties that contain either Low Density Country Residential District or Low Density Rural 

Residential District zoning along road frontage and Agricultural and Resource Protection District Zoning on the 

rear portion of the property. At its February 11, 2014 meeting, the Planning Board voted 4-2-1 to recommend 

approval of the Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment.  The Board also voted to change the sponsorship of the 

Text Amendment from a citizen based petition to a Planning Board sponsored one. 

Some Councilor’s have expressed concern addressing this issue apart from an overall review of the Agriculture 

and Resource Protection District.  At the Council’s 1
st
 reading on May 19

th 
of the Ag Text Amendment, a 

motion to approve did not pass.  In response to that action, this revised Agenda Information Sheet includes new 

findings for either approval or disapproval, (depending on the Council’s final decision); and a proposed 

comprehensive study of the Agricultural and Resource Protection Zone. 

 

Financial: None 

Action Requested at this Meeting: The Council can either approve or disapprove the Resolution.  Findings for 

approval and disapproval are attached  

 

Previous Meetings and History: The citizen initiated petition for the Text Amendment was heard by the 

Planning Board on December 10
th 

(Public Hearing and Board Discussion), January 14
th

 (Board Discussion and 

Citizen Input) and February 11
th

. (Board Discussion and Action).  The Text Amendment then was forwarded to 

a City Council Workshop on March 3
rd

, where the item was tabled to a future date to be determined.  The 

Council voted not to approve the Ag Text Amendment at it’s May 19
th

 meeting (1
st
 reading). 

 

Attachments:  

1. Findings that support either approval or disapproval.  

2. A Proposal to conduct a comprehensive study of the Agricultural and Resource Protection Zone. 

 

Council Meeting Date:  June 2, 2014 Order  03- 05192014 

Author:   Douglas Greene; AICP, RLA; City Planner 



 

2/11/2014 

 

60 Court Street  Suite 104  Auburn, ME 04210 

(207) 333-6600 Voice  (207) 333-6601 Automated  (207) 333-6625 Fax 

www.auburnmaine.org 
      

 

Ag Text Amendment- 

 

Findings for Disapproval: 

1. The proposed text amendment is not in agreement with the recommendations of the 2010 

Comprehensive Plan. (pg. 108) 

Agricultural/Rural District (AG)  

Objective– Preserve and enhance the agricultural heritage of Auburn and protect the 

City’s natural resources and scenic open space while maintaining the economic value 

of the land (see Figure 2.3). The district is characterized by a rural, very low density 

development pattern that limits sprawl and minimizes the City’s service costs. The 

District maintains the current rural development pattern allowing for a broad range of 

agriculture and natural resource‐related uses, while restricting residential 

development. Recreational development is encouraged both as a means of protecting 

open space, and as a means to provide reasonable public access to outdoor 

destinations such as Lake Auburn and the Androscoggin River. The Agriculture/Rural 

District is intended to serve as a land reserve, protecting valued community open 

space and rural landscapes, while maintaining the potential for appropriate future 

development. 

2. The proposed text amendment, implemented as a Special Exception, has potential to 

cause conflicts with adjacent agricultural operations and the provision of emergency 

services. 

3. The proposed text amendment is not in agreement with the purpose of the Agricultural 

and Resource Protection zone Article IV. District Regulations, Division 2 (Agricultural 

and Resource Protection District), Section 60-144 (Purpose). 

“The purposes of this district are to allow for conservation of natural resources and 

open space land, and to encourage agricultural, forestry, and certain types of 

recreational uses. It is declared to be in the public interest that these areas should be 

protected and conserved because of their natural, aesthetic and scenic value, the need 

to retain and preserve open space lands, their economic contribution to the city, and 

primarily because these areas are so remote from existing centers of development that 

any added uncontrolled growth could result in an economic burden on the city and its 

inhabitants. This section shall be construed so as to effectuate the purposes outline 

here and to prevent any attempt to establish uses which are inconsistent with these 

purposes or any attempt to evade the provisions of this division.” 

4. The current depth of LDCR and LDRR Rural Residential Strips, which is 450 feet from a 

road, is an adequate area to locate a residence.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

Findings for Approval: 

1. The proposed text amendment is substantial agreement with the recommendations of the 2010 

Comprehensive Plan. (pg. 109-110) 

“Where a parcel that is located in the Agriculture/Rural District land also includes 

residentially zoned land, a residential unit should be allowed to be transferred from 

the residentially zoned portion of the parcel to the Agriculture/Rural portion as long 

as the relocation does not negatively impact natural resources or the agricultural 

potential of the land. As with other residential development in the Agriculture/Rural 

District, the development standards should encourage flexibility in the location and 

size of the lot, allow for a waiver of road frontage requirements, and allow access 

from a private driveway. When a transfer occurs, the land in the residential zone from 

which a residential unit is transferred must be permanently protected from 

development through a legally binding preservation measure, such as a conservation 

easement.” 

 

2. The proposed text amendment, implemented as a Special Exception, will allow discretion by 

the Planning Board on the relocation of residences from the LDRR or LDCR zoning districts 

to the AG/RP zoning district subject  the application meeting the conditions of approval as per 

Article XVI (Administration and Enforcement), Division 3 (Special Exception), Section 6-

1336, a. 

 



D  R  A  F  T 

May 21, 2014 

A Proposal for a 

Comprehensive Study of the Agricultural and Resource Protection Zone 
 

Current Situation: 

The Agriculture and Resource Protection Zone has been in place since the early 1960’s and 

has done an impressive job of achieving its goals of limiting sprawl development, protecting 

Agricultural lands and environmentally sensitive areas and reserving land for future 

development.  Recently, a petition was made amend the AG/RP zone to allow the transfer of 

residences from a rural residential strip zone to the rear agriculturally zoned portion of a 

property.  While this particular idea was recommended in the Comprehensive Plan, it does 

not address issues lying at the core of the Agricultural zone.  Rather than take a piecemeal 

approach; the City Council (and others) expressed an interest in a comprehensive review of 

the 2010 Comprehensive Plan’s policy on agriculture and resource protection. 

 

This study can have long term, far reaching impacts on the future of Auburn.  It must be 

carefully planned and executed.  It will chart the course for the City’s future for Agriculture, 

Housing, Infrastructure and Land for Future Development to name a few. 

 

Some Possible Issues, Topics and Questions:  

 Land use, tax rates and land values.  

 State of farming in Auburn, is it viable under current regulations? 

 Statewide trends in agriculture and forestry. 

 Should Agriculture be part of the City’s economic development policy? 

 What is the cost of services in the agricultural zone? 

 Is the 50% income rule for new homes in the AG/RP a barrier to agriculture? 

 What role should environmental protection play? 

 Consider cluster development or transfer of development rights. 

 Where should new homes be located? What should the minimum lot size be? 

 

The Process: 

Due to existing projects already underway or committed to by staff, the review of the Agriculture 

and Resource Protection Zone is proposed to take place in two phases.   

Phase 1: Preliminary Ground Work (will take 6 months, June to November 2014) 

 Staff will generate an inventory of Agricultural lands and compile all Agricultural goals, 

objectives and recommendations from the 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 

 Work with and seek out outside Agricultural entities for technical assistance to evaluate 

Auburn’s existing Ag conditions and help in developing the study.  

 Assign the Planning Board regular work sessions to help in the phase 1 development of 

goals and an action plan for Phase 2. 

Phase 2: The Study (will take 6 months, December 2014- May 2015) 

 Planning Board hosts a series of workshops and public hearing to get public input and 

information from outside experts on the future of the Agricultural and Resource 

Protection zone. 

 Develop a series of alternatives that address different aspects of the City’s Agricultural 

policies, based on the public input and review by outside entities. 

 The Study will create a final proposal possibly amending the Comprehensive Plan and or 

make any changes to the Zoning Ordinance. 



LEGAL NOTICE 

 

City of Auburn 

 
 

 

The Auburn City Council will hold a Public Hearing on Monday, June 2, 2014 at 7:00 

PM in the City Council Chambers of Auburn Hall, 60 Court Street, Auburn, Maine. The 

following proposals will be heard: 

 

A proposed Zoning Map Amendment from General Business Zoning District to Central 

Business District for properties located at 178 Court St. (240-264), 184 Court St. (240-

265), 62 Spring St. (240-257), 71 Spring St. (240-263), 88 Spring St. (240-258), 95 

Spring St. (240-262), 75 Pleasant St. (240-253) and 83 Pleasant St. (240-252). 

 

A proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOMA-1180-2013) to allow the 

transfer of residential development rights for properties contained in the Low Density 

County Residential and Low Density Rural Residential Zoning Districts, to an 

Agricultural and Resource Protection Zoning District within the same parcel as a Special 

Exception and Site Plan Review.   

 

 

For more information contact Douglas Greene @ 333-6601 ext. 1156 or 

dgreene@auburnmaine.gov.   

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

To be placed in the Lewiston Sun Journal on Friday, May 23, 2014 and Monday, 

May 26, 2014. 

mailto:dgreene@auburnmaine.gov


Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 

Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan LaBonte, Mayor 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 
ORDINANCE  03-05192014 

 

   

ORDERED,  that, whereas a petition (ZOMA-1180-2013) was filed with the Auburn Planning Board to allow the 

transfer of residential development rights for properties contained in the Low Density County Residential and Low 

Density Rural Residential Zone Districts, to an Agricultural and Resource Protection Zone District within the same parcel 

as a Special Exception and Site Plan Review.   

 

And whereas the Auburn City Council reviewed the record of the Planning Board’s recommendation to forward the text 

amendment with a positive vote of 4-2-1,  

 

And whereas, the Auburn City Council finds that:  

1. The proposed text amendment is in substantial agreement with the 2010 Comprehensive Plan and 

2. The proposed text amendment, treated as a Special Exception and Site Plan Review will allow the Planning Board 

discretion in ensuring that the relocated residence will be compatible with and protect the Agricultural potential, 

Environmental resources and future land use recommendations of the 2010 Comprehensive Plan.   
e Plan. 

Therefore, the Auburn City Council approves the Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOMA- 1180-2014).  

 

 
    



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

Revised: 1/13/11  Page 1 of 1 

 

  Council Meeting Date: June 2, 2014   Resolve 06-05052014  

 

  Author:  Jill M. Eastman, Finance Director   

 

Subject: Resolve adopting the 2014-2015 Annual Appropriation and Revenue Resolve (Second Reading) 

 

Information:  In accordance with the City Charter, Article 8, Section 8.6, prior to the fiscal year the City 

Council shall adopt an annual appropriation resolve making appropriations by department, fund, services, 

strategy or other organizational unit and authorizing an allocation for each program or activity. 

 

The Council has been supplied with an updated resolve that includes all amendments made during the first 

reading, to adopt the annual appropriations for the City of Auburn, which includes final figures for revenue, 

total appropriation and municipal budget. 

 

The school appropriation resolve has been incorporated into this annual appropriation resolve for the City of 

Auburn. 

 

This is the second and final reading.  

    
Financial:  n/a 

 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Yes-Approve the resolve adopting Annual Appropriation Resolve FY 

2014-2015 (second reading) 

 

Why? It is necessary to adopt the annual appropriation resolve, this is the second reading  

 

Previous Meetings and History: Annual 

 

Attachments: (in order of appearance in packet) 

 Updated Resolve for the 2014-2015 Annual Appropriation and Revenue 

 

 



2:46 PM 5/20/2014

1

AS OF 05/19/14
COUNCIL MANAGER COUNCIL
ADOPTED PROPOSED AMENDED
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET
FY 13-14 FY 14-15 FY 14-15 $ Change % Change

City Expenses
Operating Expenses 23,586,783 25,283,343 25,283,343 1,696,560 7.19%
Debt Service/TIF 8,877,307 8,847,968 8,847,968 (29,339) -0.33%
Intergovernmental 3,676,418 3,723,639 3,723,639 47,221 1.28%

Total City Expenses 36,140,508 37,885,467 37,854,950 1,714,442 4.74%
School Expenses

Operating Expenses 34,456,042 35,882,953 35,534,192 1,078,150 3.13%
Debt Service 2,671,986 2,707,131 2,707,131 35,145 1.32%

Total School Expenses 37,128,028 38,590,084 38,241,323 1,113,295 3.00%
Total Expenses 73,268,536 76,475,551 76,096,273 2,827,737 3.86%
Less: Non-Tax Revenues

City 10,710,337 11,256,313 12,390,584 1,680,247 15.69%
School 21,766,728 22,140,765 22,092,693 325,965 1.50%
Total Non-Tax Revenues 32,477,065 33,397,078 34,483,277 2,006,212 6.18%

Tax Levy
City 23,419,158 24,582,274 23,417,486 (1,672) -0.01%
School 15,361,300 16,449,319 16,148,630 787,330 5.13%
County 2,029,513 2,046,880 2,046,880 17,367 0.86%
Overlay 166,917

Total Tax Levy 40,809,971 43,078,473 41,612,996 803,025 1.97%
Total Assessed Value 2,005,721,383 2,005,721,383 2,005,721,383
Tax Rate

City 11.76 12.26 11.68 (0.08) -0.71%
School 7.66 8.20 8.05 0.39 5.13%
County 1.01 1.02 1.02 0.01 0.86%

Total 20.43 21.48 20.75 0.32 1.55%

 CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2015 EXPENDITURES

COMPARISON FY14 AND FY15 BUDGETS



2:46 PM 5/20/2014

2

AS OF 05/19/14
COUNCIL DEPARTMENT MANAGER COUNCIL Increase
ADOPTED PROJECTED PROPOSED PROPOSED AMENDED  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 13-14 FY 14-15 FY 14-15 FY 14-15 FY 14-15 Year Budget  (Decrease)
Administration
Assessing 172,277 173,245 191,970 177,320 177,320 5,043 2.93%
City Clerk 162,045 171,080 194,214 170,243 164,593 2,548 1.57%
City Manager 238,903 237,313 319,505 270,750 270,750 31,847 13.33%
Economic Development 318,933 119,705 385,755 359,500 359,500 40,567 12.72%
Finance 405,976 409,215 418,675 428,315 427,815 21,839 5.38%
Human Resources 139,566 137,778 139,578 139,578 139,578 12 0.01%
ICT 395,350 374,853 422,979 418,329 413,829 18,479 4.67%
Legal Services 100,000 80,000 85,000 65,000 65,000 (35,000) -35.00%
Mayor & Council 71,079 72,065 78,532 78,532 78,532 7,453 10.49%

Total Administration 2,004,129 1,775,254 2,236,208 2,107,567 2,096,917 92,788 4.63%

Community Services
Health & Social Services
  Administration 83,557 83,557 86,972 86,972 86,972 3,415 4.09%
  Assistance 105,982 161,684 144,381 144,381 105,982 0 0.00%
Planning & Permitting 775,230 795,030 915,544 804,494 804,494 29,264 3.77%
Public Library 927,237 927,237 942,407 941,192 941,192 13,955 1.51%

Total Community Services 1,892,006 1,967,508 2,089,304 1,977,039 1,938,640 46,634 2.46%

Fiscal Services
Debt Service 6,321,584 6,301,531 6,263,936 6,263,936 6,263,936 (57,648) -0.91%
Emergency Reserve 375,289 0 375,289 375,289 375,289 0 0.00%
Facilities 715,667 678,552 729,870 698,335 698,335 (17,332) -2.42%
Transfer to TIF 2,555,723 2,584,032 2,584,032 2,584,032 2,584,032 28,309 1.11%
Fringe Benefits 4,397,585 4,500,000 4,945,117 4,945,117 4,915,117 517,532 11.77%
Workers' Compensation 431,446 415,000 468,081 468,081 468,081 36,635 8.49%

Total Fiscal Services 14,797,294 14,479,115 15,366,325 15,334,790 15,304,790 507,496 3.43%

Public Safety
Fire 4,024,789 4,113,156 4,300,126 4,120,633 4,047,633 22,844 0.57%
Fire EMS Transport 0 0 0 0 635,468 635,468 0.00%
Police 3,589,583 3,324,191 3,958,119 3,884,183 3,738,108 148,525 4.14%

Total Public Safety 7,614,372 7,437,347 8,258,245 8,004,816 8,421,209 806,837 10.60%

Public Services
Public Services 5,577,954 5,521,226 5,890,448 5,780,179 5,782,879 204,925 3.67%
Water & Sewer 558,835 558,835 599,013 599,013 599,013 40,178 7.19%

Total Public Works 6,136,789 6,080,061 6,489,461 6,379,192 6,381,892 245,103 3.99%
Capital Improvement Projects
City Clerk (see Clerk Budget) 18,500 0 0 0 (18,500) -100.00%
Engineering-Paving 100,000 0 0 0 0.00%

 CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2015 EXPENDITURES

COMPARISON FY14 AND FY15 BUDGETS



2:46 PM 5/20/2014

3

AS OF 05/19/14
COUNCIL DEPARTMENT MANAGER COUNCIL Increase
ADOPTED PROJECTED PROPOSED PROPOSED AMENDED  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 13-14 FY 14-15 FY 14-15 FY 14-15 FY 14-15 Year Budget  (Decrease)

 CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2015 EXPENDITURES

COMPARISON FY14 AND FY15 BUDGETS

Fire 0 83,000 83,000 10,000 10,000 0.00%
LA 911 17,863 0 17,863 17,863 0.00%
Planning 98,000 98,000 98,000 98,000 0.00%
PW 63,700 63,700 0 0 0.00%
Recreation 20,500 20,500 20,500 20,500 0.00%
Airport 25,000 25,000 0 0 0.00%
Library 19,500 0 45,227 45,227 19,500 0 0.00%

Total CIP 38,000 0 453,290 335,427 165,863 127,863 336.48%

Salary Reductions 0 0 0 0 (178,000) (178,000) 0.00%

Total Municipal 32,482,590 31,739,285 34,892,833 34,138,831 34,131,311 1,826,721 5.62%

Intergovernmental Programs
County Taxes 2,029,513 2,006,244 2,046,880 2,046,880 2,046,880 17,367 0.86%
Tax Sharing 270,000 288,593 270,000 270,000 270,000 0 0.00%
Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport 105,000 105,000 113,750 113,750 105,000 0 0.00%
Community Little Theater 0 20,160 0 0 0 0.00%
LA Arts 0 0 17,064 17,064 17,000 17,000 0.00%
Museum LA 0 0 37,500 0 0 0 0.00%
Lew-Aub Economic Growth Council (see EconDev) 0 160,687 0 0 0 0 0.00%
Lew-Aug Transit Committee 235,496 235,548 237,021 237,021 235,373 (123) -0.05%
Lew-Aub 911 Communications Center 1,036,409 1,035,381 1,093,533 1,061,921 1,049,386 12,977 1.25%

Total Intergovernmental Programs 3,676,418 3,851,613 3,815,748 3,746,636 3,723,639 47,221 1.28%

Grand Total Municipal 36,159,008 35,590,898 38,708,581 37,885,467 37,854,950 1,695,942 4.69%

     Education Operation 34,456,042 33,419,500 36,337,263 35,882,953 35,534,192 1,078,150 3.13%
     Education Debt Service 2,671,986 2,483,582 2,707,131 2,707,131 2,707,131 35,145 1.32%
Total School 37,128,028 35,903,082 39,044,394 38,590,084 38,241,323 1,113,295 3.00%

Total Budget 73,287,036 71,493,980 77,752,975 76,475,551 76,096,273 2,809,237 3.83%



2:46 PM 5/20/2014

4

AS OF 05/19/14
COUNCIL DEPARTMENT MANAGER COUNCIL Increase
ADOPTED PROJECTED PROPOSED PROPOSED AMENDED  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 13-14 FY 14-15 FY 14-15 FY 14-15 FY 14-15 Year Budget  (Decrease)

 CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2015 EXPENDITURES

COMPARISON FY14 AND FY15 BUDGETS

        Non-Property Tax Revenue
                             Municipal 10,710,337 11,256,313 11,256,313 12,390,584 1,680,247 15.69%
                             Education 21,766,728 22,140,765 22,140,765 22,092,693 325,965 1.50%
                             Total 32,477,065 33,397,078 33,397,078 34,483,277 2,006,212 6.18%

        Property Tax Dollars Needed
                             Municipal 25,448,671 27,452,268 26,629,154 25,464,366 15,695 0.06%
                             Education 15,361,300 16,903,629 16,449,319 16,148,630 787,330 5.13%
                             Total 40,809,971 44,355,897 43,078,473 41,612,996 803,025 1.97%

Property Tax Rate 20.43 22.11 21.48 20.75 0.32 1.55%
    Based on Assessed Values of : 2,005,721,383 2,005,721,383 2,005,721,383 2,005,721,383

Property Tax Rate
     Municipal Tax Rate 12.77 $13.69 $13.28 $12.70 (0.07) -0.58%
     Education Tax Rate 7.66 $8.43 $8.20 $8.05 0.39 5.11%

20.43 22.11 21.48 20.75 0.32 1.55%



5/20/2014

5

CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2015 REVENUES

COMPARISON FY14 AND FY15 BUDGETS
AS OF 05/19/14

COUNCIL MANAGER COUNCIL Increase
ADOPTED PROPOSED AMENDED  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 13-14 FY 14-15 FY 14-15 Year Budget  (Decrease)

General Government
Homestead Exemption Reimbursement                          482,575       495,000        495,000           12,425          2.57%
Personal Property Reimbursement 1,230,000    1,350,000     1,350,000        120,000        0.00%
Tree Growth Reimbursement 10,000         10,000          10,000              -                    0.00%
Veterans Reimbursement 18,000         18,000          18,000              -                    0.00%
CDBG Reimbursement 8,000           8,000            8,000                -                    0.00%
In Lieu of Taxes                                         80,000         80,000          80,000              -                    0.00%
Excise Tax-Vehicles                                      3,050,000    3,160,000     3,160,000        110,000        3.61%
Excise Tax-Boats 15,000         15,000          15,000              -                    0.00%
Excise Tax-Aircraft 3,500           10,000          10,000              6,500            185.71%
State Revenue Sharing                                    1,649,470    1,649,470     1,649,470        -                    0.00%
Other State Aid                                          4,000           4,000            4,000                -                    0.00%
Penalties & Interest                                     140,000       140,000        145,000           5,000            3.57%
Investment Income                                        20,000         10,000          10,000              (10,000)         -50.00%
Interest from Bonds                                      2,000           2,000            2,000                -                    0.00%
Transfer in from TIF 500,000       500,000        500,000           -                    0.00%
Transfer in from Special Revenue Funds 20,000         310,000        310,000           290,000        1450.00%
Transfer in from Parking Program -                   -                    55,000              55,000          0.00%
Transfer in from Police Drug Money -                   -                    45,000              45,000          0.00%
Transfer in from Recreation Special Revenue -                   -                    41,720              41,720          0.00%
Rental Income (Intermodal) 122,000       122,000        122,000           -                    0.00%
Sale of Property                                         20,000         20,000          20,000              -                    0.00%
Tax Sharing Revenue                                      155,000       155,000        155,000           -                    0.00%
Cable Television Franchise                               126,000       126,000        126,000           -                    0.00%
MMWAC Host Fees                                          204,000       206,000        206,000           2,000            0.98%
Energy Efficiency 2,000           -                    -                        (2,000)           -100.00%
Reimbursement-Other 10,000         10,000          10,000              -                    0.00%
Utility Reimbursement 27,500         27,500          27,500              -                    0.00%
Unclassified 7,500           10,000          10,000              2,500            33.33%
Fund Balance Contribution 1,350,000    1,350,000     1,350,000        -                    0.00%

Total General Government 9,256,545    9,787,970     9,934,690        678,145        7.33%



5/20/2014

6

CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2015 REVENUES

COMPARISON FY14 AND FY15 BUDGETS
AS OF 05/19/14

COUNCIL MANAGER COUNCIL Increase
ADOPTED PROPOSED AMENDED  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 13-14 FY 14-15 FY 14-15 Year Budget  (Decrease)

City Clerk
Hunting/Fishing/Dogs                                     2,000           2,000            2,000                -                    0.00%
Neutered Animals                                         3,000           3,000            3,000                -                    0.00%
Voter Reg List                                           100              100               100                   -                    0.00%
Clerk/Sale of Copies                                     200              200               200                   -                    0.00%
City Clerk Notary                                        1,800           1,800            1,800                -                    0.00%
Banner Hanging Fee                                       3,300           3,300            3,300                -                    0.00%
Garage Sale Permits -                   3,000            3,000                3,000            0.00%
Commercial License                                       40,000         40,000          40,000              -                    0.00%
Taxi License                                             3,000           4,000            4,000                1,000            33.33%
Marriage License                                         5,000           5,000            5,000                -                    0.00%
Birth/Death/Marriage Cert                                25,000         25,000          25,000              -                    0.00%
Permits - Burial                                         7,000           7,000            7,000                -                    0.00%
Fines-Dog                                                3,000           3,000            3,000                -                    0.00%

Total City Clerk 93,400         97,400          97,400              4,000            4.28%

Finance
Reg - Vehicles                                           60,000         60,000          60,000              -                    0.00%

Total Finance 60,000         60,000          60,000              -                    0.00%

Community Services-ICT
GIS/Data & Maps                                          20                20                 20                     -                    0.00%

Total Community Services-ICT 20                20                 20                     -                    0.00%

Assessing
Maps & Copies                                            20                20                 20                     -                    0.00%

Total Assessing 20                20                 20                     -                    0.00%

Health & Social Services
GA Reimbursement                                         53,000         70,000          70,000              17,000          32.08%

Total Health & Social Services 53,000         70,000          70,000              17,000          32.08%



5/20/2014

7

CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2015 REVENUES

COMPARISON FY14 AND FY15 BUDGETS
AS OF 05/19/14

COUNCIL MANAGER COUNCIL Increase
ADOPTED PROPOSED AMENDED  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 13-14 FY 14-15 FY 14-15 Year Budget  (Decrease)

Planning & Permitting
Maps & Copies                                            500              500               500                   -                    0.00%
Departmental Reviews 16,000         16,000          16,000              -                    0.00%
Planning/Codes & Ordinance                               3,000           -                    -                        (3,000)           -100.00%
Fire Alarm Inspections                                   29,000         29,000          29,000              -                    0.00%
Citation Ordinance                                       2,000           2,000            2,000                -                    0.00%
Advertising Costs 5,000           5,000            5,000                -                    0.00%
Lisbon Reimbursement for Services 10,000         10,000          10,000              -                    0.00%
Permits - Building                                       110,000       110,000        110,000           -                    0.00%
CDBG Reimbursement for Services 50,000         50,000          50,000              -                    0.00%
Permits - Electrical                                     16,000         16,000          16,000              -                    0.00%
Permits - Plumbing                                       10,500         10,500          10,500              -                    0.00%
Permits - Sign                                           5,000           5,000            5,000                -                    0.00%

Total Planning & Permitting 257,000       254,000        254,000           (3,000)           -1.17%

Parks & Recreation
Arena -                   -                    -                        -                    0.00%
Recreation Program                                       -                   -                    -                        -                    0.00%

Total Parks & Recreation -                   -                    -                        -                    0.00%
Community Services-Engineering
Fees - Eng-Misc                                          200              -                    -                        (200)              -100.00%
Fees - Inspection                                        10,000         5,000            5,000                (5,000)           -50.00%
Fees - Drive Opening                                     200              200               200                   -                    0.00%
Fees - Bid Documents 1,000           1,000            1,000                -                    0.00%
Permits - Fill                                           1,000           1,000            1,000                -                    0.00%
Permits - Street Opening                                 25,000         25,000          25,000              -                    0.00%

Total Community Services-Engineering 37,400         32,200          32,200              (5,200)           -13.90%

Fire Department
Copies of Reports                                        200              200               200                   -                    0.00%
Inspections 10,000         -                    -                        (10,000)         -100.00%
EMS Transport -                   -                    987,551           987,551        0.00%
EMS Agreement                                         100,000       -                    -                        (100,000)       -100.00%
Salvage Calls                                            100              100               100                   -                    0.00%
Permits - Oil Burner                                     800              800               800                   -                    0.00%

Total Fire Department 111,100       1,100            988,651           877,551        789.87%



5/20/2014

8

CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2015 REVENUES

COMPARISON FY14 AND FY15 BUDGETS
AS OF 05/19/14

COUNCIL MANAGER COUNCIL Increase
ADOPTED PROPOSED AMENDED  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 13-14 FY 14-15 FY 14-15 Year Budget  (Decrease)

Police Department
Accident & Police                                        13,000         13,000          13,000              -                    0.00%
Court                                                    15,000         15,000          15,000              -                    0.00%
Photos & Tapes                                           500              2,000            2,000                1,500            300.00%
False Alarms                                             10,000         15,000          15,000              5,000            50.00%
Animal Impound 300              1,000            1,000                700               233.33%
Veh Rel/Non Driver                                       6,000           2,000            2,000                (4,000)           -66.67%
Veh Rel/Driver Licence                                   15,000         11,000          11,000              (4,000)           -26.67%
ARRA Cops Grant -                   119,351        119,351           119,351        0.00%
MDEA Reimbursement 60,102         60,102          60,102              -                    0.00%
School Resource Officers 173,150       173,150        173,150           -                    0.00%
Computer Crimes 56,000         72,000          72,000              16,000          28.57%
Permits - Alarms 5,000           -                    -                        (5,000)           -100.00%
Permits - Firearms                                       3,000           4,000            4,000                1,000            33.33%
Fines - Parking Violations                               40,000         26,000          26,000              (14,000)         -35.00%

Total Police Department 397,052       513,603        513,603           116,551        29.35%

Public Works
Community Cords 4,800           -                    -                        (4,800)           
State/Local Road Assistance                              440,000       440,000        440,000           -                    0.00%

Total Public Works 444,800       440,000        440,000           (4,800)           -1.08%

Total Municipal 10,710,337  11,256,313   12,390,584      1,680,247     15.69%



5/20/2014

9

CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2015 REVENUES

COMPARISON FY14 AND FY15 BUDGETS
AS OF 05/19/14

COUNCIL MANAGER COUNCIL Increase
ADOPTED PROPOSED AMENDED  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 13-14 FY 14-15 FY 14-15 Year Budget  (Decrease)

School Department
Reg Secondary Tuition                                    134,266       134,266        134,266           -                    0.00%
SOS Tuition                                              90,000         90,000          90,000              -                    0.00%
Adult Ed Tuition                                         93,800         93,300          93,300              (500)              -0.53%
State Subsidy for Education                              18,976,018  19,339,405   19,291,333      315,315        1.66%
Debt Service Reimbursement                               1,161,010    1,119,906     1,119,906        (41,104)         -3.54%
PreK/CDS 55,000         55,000          55,000              -                    0.00%
Special Ed/Mainecare                                     125,000       125,000        125,000           -                    0.00%
State Agency Clients                                     30,000         30,000          30,000              -                    0.00%
State Aid for Adult Education                            96,246         98,500          98,500              2,254            2.34%
Miscellaneous                                            98,506         98,506          98,506              -                    0.00%
Daycare Rent 50,000         50,000          50,000              -                    0.00%
Fund Balance 856,882       906,882        906,882           50,000          0.00%
Total School 21,766,728  22,140,765   22,092,693      325,965        1.50%

Total Non-Property Tax Revenue - Municipal 10,710,337  11,256,313   12,390,584      1,680,247     15.69%
Total Non-Property Tax Revenue - School 21,766,728  22,140,765   22,092,693      325,965        1.50%
Total Non-Property Tax Revenue 32,477,065  33,397,078   34,483,277      2,006,212     6.18%

Total Proposed Budget - Municipal 36,140,508  37,885,467   37,854,950      1,714,442     4.74%
Total Proposed Budget - School 37,128,028  38,590,084   38,241,323      1,113,295     3.00%
Total Proposed Budget 73,268,536  76,475,551   76,096,273      2,827,737     3.86%

Total Property Tax Dollars Needed - Municipal 25,430,171  26,629,154   25,464,366      34,195          0.13%
Total Property Tax Dollars Needed - School 15,361,300  16,449,319   16,148,630      787,330        5.13%
Total Property Tax Dollars Needed 40,791,471  43,078,473   41,612,996      821,525        2.01%



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 
Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 
Adam Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

RESOLVE 06-05052014 
 

RESOLVED, that the following be, and hereby is the Annual Appropriation and Revenue Resolve of the 
City of Auburn for the fiscal year 2014-2015, which includes the amounts appropriated herein and revenues 
from all sources beginning July 1, 2014 and ending June 30, 2015. 
 

The estimated aggregate amount of non-property tax revenue is $33,349,006 with a municipal revenue 
budget of $11,256,313 and a School Department revenue budget of $22,092,693. 
 
 The aggregate appropriation for the City of Auburn is $76,126,790, with a municipal budget of 
$35,838,587 County budget of $2,046,880 and a School Department budget of $38,241,323 which received 
School Committee approval on April 30, 2014, and school budget approved at the May 19, 2014 Council 
Meeting pursuant to the School Budget Validation vote on June 10, 2014, in accordance with Maine Revised 
Statues, Title 20-A § 1486 and based on the budget submitted to the Auburn City Council on April 7, 2014, by 
the City Manager, and notification was posted on the City of Auburn website on May 2, 2014 that a public 
hearing would be held on May 5, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. and said hearing having been held on that date, and as 
amended by the City Council, the same is hereby appropriated for the fiscal year 2014-2015 beginning July 1, 
2014 for the lawful expenditures of the City of Auburn and the County of Androscoggin taxes, and said 
amounts are declared not to be in excess of the estimated revenue from taxation and sources other than taxation 
for the fiscal year of 2014-2015. 
 

COUNCIL AMENDMENTS 
 

On May 19, 2014, the Council passed the following amendments to the Annual Appropriation and Revenue 
Resolve: 
 
Amendment 1 - We the Council of the City of Auburn adopt and approve the following items to the City 
Budget: 
 
Amend the Department of Fire to expand into the program of EMS transport by increasing expenditures by 
$635,468 to implement EMS transport and increase revenue by $987,551 for EMS transport. 
 
Amendment 2 - We the Council of the City of Auburn adopt and approve the following items to the City 
Budget: 

 
Amend the Department of Fire by decreasing expenditures by $73,000 to fire operations; 
 
Amend the Parking Program of the City and Police Budget to initiate greater use of revenues by $55,000 
and institute a non-sworn model for parking enforcement; 
 



 

Page 2 of 6 
 

Amend Police Department Budget to eliminate the shared funding with Lewiston for Animal Control 
decreasing expenses by $15,142; 
 
Amend the Vehicle Purchases for the Police department to only one new cruiser purchased in this 
budget, decreasing expenses by $94,000; 
 
Amend the Police Department to delay purchases of special equipment (radar) decreasing expenses by 
$49,500; 
 
Amend Police Department revenues to utilize $45,000 of federal drug seizure money; 
 

Amendment 3 - We the Council of the City of Auburn adopt and approve the following items to the City 
Budget: 
 
 Amend the Department of Finance, Administration Program to reduce training by $500; 
 

Amend the Revenues of the City of Auburn, Department of Finance, to increase revenues by $5,000 for 
new required fees for lien fillings at Androscoggin County registry of deeds; 
 
Amend the Department of City clerk to decrease expenditures by $5,650 to reduce training, mileage 
reimbursement, office supplies, and records restoration; 
 
Amend Health and Social Services to last year’s funding level a decrease of expenditures of $38,399 
(this does intentionally under budget but per statute overages are allowed); 
 
Amend Fringe Benefits for Medical consulting to decrease expenditures by $30,000; this sustains 
investing in a medical consultant at a reduced rate that will yield long-term health savings; 
 
Amend the ICT budget to decrease expenditures by $4,500 to eliminate Council laptop initiative; 
 
Amend Public Services Budget to reduce operating expenditures by $99,300, leaving money in the 
budget for spring clean up, herbicide program and mowing at Oak Hill Cemetery; 
 
Amend the Revenues from Recreation Program Fund to increase by $41,720 to fund the cost of the 
recreation program leader from program income; 
 

Amendment 4 - We the Council of the City of Auburn adopt and approve the following items to the City 
Budget: 
 

Amend the following intergovernmental departments as follows: reduce Airport by $8,750, reduce 
LATC by $1,648 and reduce LA911 by $12,535; 

 
Amendment 5 - We the Council of the City of Auburn adopt and approve the following items to the City 
Budget: 
 

Amend all City Departments decreasing expenditures by $178,000 for staff reductions, attrition, or 
retirements to be implemented by the City Manager; 
 



 

Page 3 of 6 
 

Amendment 6 - We the Council of the City of Auburn adopt and approve the following items to the City 
Budget: 

Amend the Department of Public Services, Environmental Program to increase expenditures by 
$102,000 to sustain and expand curbside recycling; 

Be it further amended to state that it is the policy of the City of Auburn to implement a curbside 
recycling and solid waste program with a City Ordinance of solid waste and recycling no later 
than June 30th, 2015. 
 

Amendment 7 - We the Council of the City of Auburn adopt and approve the following items to the City 
Budget: 

Amend the operational CIP requested items to decrease expenditures by $187,427, leaving a total of 
$165,863.  

 
 
 

Council

Description Recommended Amended
Airport Vehicle Replacement 15,000$                -$                  
Airport Terminal Aircraft Parking Apron 10,000$                -$                  
Fire Generator for South Main Street Station 25,000$                -$                  
Fire Vehicle Replacement, FPO Vehicle (replacement) 24,000$                -$                  
Fire Replace expired SCBA  cylinders 10,000$                10,000$      
LA911 Recorder replacement project 14,113$      
LA911 Reverse 911 upgrade 3,750$         
Library Skylight Replacement 5,944$                   5,944$         
Library Replace Water Heater 12,500$                12,500$      
Planning Inspection Vehicle-Replacement 20,000$                20,000$      
Recreation Remove underground storage tank-Hasty (mandatory) 15,000$                15,000$      
Recreation Renovate Kitchen-Hasty (delayed from FY14) 5,500$                   5,500$         
Fire Vehicle Replacement, DC Vehicle (new) 24,000$                -$                  
Planning Traffic Signal Upgrade -Loop-Park/Court 11,000$                11,000$      
Planning Traffic Signal Upgrade -Auburn Plaza 6,000$                   6,000$         
Planning Preemption-All Signal Locations 11,000$                11,000$      
Library Carpet Replacement 26,783$                1,056$         
Public Works Purchase message sign board 25,000$                -$                  
Public Works Side Dump Body/Hydraulic Pump 38,700$                -$                  
Planning Roadway Lighting Main St 30,000$                30,000$      
Planning Roadway Lighting Auburn Mall Area 20,000$                20,000$      

335,427$              165,863$    TOTAL CIP

CITY OF AUBURN
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN

CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION
FY 15  OPERATING CAPITAL



 

Page 4 of 6 
 

Amendment 8 - We the Council of the City of Auburn adopt and approve the following items to the 
Appropriation Resolve: 
 

Amend the FY 2015 Appropriation Resolve to include the following statements: the FY15 budget 
implements up to a 2% COLA for employees.  
 
The City Manager is authorized to update the 2007 Pay Scales for the City of Auburn by the CPI-U for 
each year through 2014. 

 
Amendment 9 - We the Council of the City of Auburn adopt and approve the following item to the 
Appropriation Resolve: 
 

Amend LA Arts to be Arts and Culture Auburn and reduce the request by $64 to $17,000 to be reserved 
for Arts and Cultural activities/projects specifically in Auburn.  

 
AMENDED RESOLVE WITH ALL AMENDMENTS INCORPORATED 

 
The estimated aggregate amount of non-property tax revenue is $34,483,277 with a municipal revenue 

budget of $12,390,584 and a School Department revenue budget of $22,092,693. 
 
 The aggregate appropriation for the City of Auburn is $76,096,273, with a municipal budget of 
$35,808,070 County budget of $2,046,880 and a School Department budget of $38,241,323 which received 
School Committee approval on April 30, 2014, and school budget approved at the May 19, 2014 Council 
Meeting pursuant to the School Budget Validation vote on June 10, 2014, in accordance with Maine Revised 
Statues, Title 20-A § 1486 and based on the budget submitted to the Auburn City Council on April 7, 2014, by 
the City Manager, and notification was posted on the City of Auburn website on May 2, 2014 that a public 
hearing would be held on May 5, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. and said hearing having been held on that date, and as 
amended by the City Council, the same is hereby appropriated for the fiscal year 2014-2015 beginning July 1, 
2014 for the lawful expenditures of the City of Auburn and the County of Androscoggin taxes, and said 
amounts are declared not to be in excess of the estimated revenue from taxation and sources other than taxation 
for the fiscal year of 2014-2015. 
 
 

SCHOOL BUDGET ARTICLES 
 

1. That $15,246,432.00 be authorized to be expended for Regular Instruction; 

2. That $7,962,668.00 be authorized to be expended for Special Education; 

3. That $-0- be authorized to be expended for Career and Technical Education; 

4. That $752,692.00 be authorized to be expended for Other Instruction; 

5. That $4,402,306.00 be authorized to be expended for Student and Staff Support; 

6. That $842,216.00 be authorized to be expended for System Administration; 

7. That $1,284,149.00 be authorized to be expended for School Administration; 

8. That $1,108,321.00 be authorized to be expended for Transportation and Buses; 

9. That $3,512,020.00 be authorized to be expended for Facilities Maintenance; 



 

Page 5 of 6 
 

10. That $2,707,131.00 be authorized to be expended for Debt Service and Other 
          Commitments; 

11. That $423,388 be authorized to be expended for All Other Expenditures; 

12. That $37,817,935.00 be appropriated for the total cost of funding public education from Pre-
kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act and that 
$14,329,818.00 be raised as the municipality’s contribution to the total cost of funding public education 
from Pre-kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act in 
accordance with the Maine Revised Statues, Title 20-A, section 15688; 
 

Statutory Recommendation   $15,935,333 
City Council Adopted   $14,329,818 

 
Explanation:  The city’s contribution to the total cost of funding public education from Pre-
kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act is the 
amount of money determined by state law to be the minimum amount that a municipality must raise 
in order to receive the full amount of state dollars. 
 

      13.  That $1,587,224.00 be raised and appropriated for the annual payments on debt service previously 
approved by the city’s legislative body for non-state-funded school construction projects, non-state-
funded portions of school construction projects and minor capital projects in addition to the funds 
appropriated as the local share of the city’s contribution to the total cost of funding public education 
from Pre-kindergarten to grade 12; 

 
Explanation:  Non-state-funded debt service is the amount of money needed for the annual payments 
on the city’s long-term debt for major capital school construction projects and minor capital 
renovation projects that are not approved for state subsidy.  The bonding of this long-term debt was 
previously approved by the voters or other legislative body. 

 
14. That $0.00 be raised and appropriated in additional local funds for school purposes under the Maine 

Revised Statutes, Title 20-A, section 15690; 
 

Explanation:  The additional local funds are those locally raised funds over and above the 
municipality’s local contributions to the total cost of funding public education from Pre-
kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act and 
local amounts raised for the annual payment on non-state-funded debt service that will help achieve 
the school department budget for education programs. 

 

15. That the school committee be authorized to expend $37,817,935.00 for the fiscal year  beginning July 1, 
2013 and ending June 30, 2014 from the city’s contribution to the total cost of funding public education 
from Pre-kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act, 
non-state-funded school construction projects, additional local funds for school purposes under the 
Maine Revised Statutes, Title 20-A, section 15690, unexpended balances, tuition receipts, fund balances, 
state subsidy and other receipts for the support of schools; 

 



 

Page 6 of 6 
 

16. That the City of Auburn appropriate $380,880.00 for adult education and raise $189,080.00 as the local 
share, with authorization to expend any additional incidental or miscellaneous receipts in the interest for 
the well-being of the adult education program; 

 
17.  That the City of Auburn raise and appropriate $42,508.00 for the services of Community Services-

Crossing Guards. 
 

18. That in addition to amount approved in the preceding articles, the school committee be authorized to 
expend such other sums as may be received from federal or state grants or programs or other sources 
during the fiscal year for school purposes, provided that such grants, programs or other sources do not 
require the expenditure of other funds not previously appropriated; 
 
RESOLVED, that the following be, and hereby is the Annual Budget and Revenue Estimate for the City 

of Auburn Enterprise Fund – Norway Savings Bank Arena for the fiscal year 2014-2015, which includes the 
amounts budgeted herein and revenues from all sources beginning July 1, 2014 and ending June 30, 2015. 

 
The Enterprise Fund-Norway Savings Bank Arena estimated amount of non-property tax revenue is 

$1,221,935. 
 

 The Enterprise Fund-Norway Savings Bank Arena budget is $1,208,500. 
 

  RESOLVED, that the following be, and hereby is the Annual Budget and Revenue Estimate for 
the City of Auburn Enterprise Fund – Ingersoll Arena for the fiscal year 2014-2015, which includes the amounts 
budgeted herein beginning July 1, 2014 and ending June 30, 2015. 

 
 The Enterprise Fund-Ingersoll Arena budget is $13,000 for utilities and repairs pending Council action 
to repurpose the facility. Upon Council Action to repurpose, the Council must pass a supplemental budget. 
 
 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council deems it necessary to adopt a budget which exceeds 
the percent increase of the Consumer Price Index Urban as of December 31, 2013, and hereby waives the 
provisions of Section 2-485 of the City Code of Ordinances. 

 
 
 
 

 
 



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: New Business – The Penalty Box, Inc., 985 Turner Street (Norway Savings Bank Arena) – application 

for a Liquor License 

 

Information: The Penalty Box, Inc., (Kevin Pratt) located at 985 Turner Street (Norway Savings Bank Arena) 

applied for a Liquor License (Food Service Class I – Spirituous, Vinous, Malt). Police, Fire and Code have 

completed inspections and approvals have been granted. 

 

Financial: N/A 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Recommend approval. 

 

Previous Meetings and History: N/A 

 

Attachments:  

 Liquor License application 

 FSE/Class I application 

 Criminal Background Check 

 Copy of Public Hearing 

 Order 44-06022014 

Council Meeting Date: 06/02/2014  Order: 44-06022014   

Author:   Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 

























CITY OF AUBURN 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

A public hearing will be held by the Auburn City Council on Monday, June 

02, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. or as soon as possible thereafter, in the Council 

Chambers of Auburn Hall, 60 Court Street, to consider the Liquor License 

application for: 

 

The Penalty Box, Inc. 

985 Turner Street, Auburn, Maine  

 

All interested persons may appear and will be given the opportunity to be 

heard before final action is taken. 

 

  

 

 

 

 



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER 44-06022014 

 
ORDERED, that the Auburn City Council hereby approves the liquor license application for The Penalty Box, 

Inc., located at 985 Turner Street.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Zoning map amendment in the Spring Street area to make the Central Business II District Zoning 

Boundaries consistent with the Traditional Downtown Business (DTB) District boundaries identified in the 

Future Land Use Map from the Comprehensive Plan Auburn Tomorrow.       

 

Information: The comprehensive Plan recommends that the Spring Street area zoning be changed from General 

Business Zoning, a highway and vehicle oriented zoning district, to Central Business II (CBII), a more 

traditional downtown business district to allow for a development pattern that is consistent with the historic 

downtown.  Currently, the General Business designation requires substantial setbacks and esidential density is 

restricted to a very low suburban type density.  The proposed CBII District would reduce setback requirements, 

allow for increased residential density and mixed use structures.  The current zoning designation is inconsistent 

with the existing development patterns and the recommendations of the Comprehensive Plan.  

 

At the April 8, 2014 Planning Board hearing the Board recommended the change and further recommended that 

the change be expanded to continue along Spring Street (between Spring and the RR Tracks) to Elm Street. A 

map showing the  proposal is attached.   

 

On April 22, 2014 the Council seemed generally supportive of the change and asked that we consider changes 

in a larger area of the downtown over the summer.  That discussion has started with the Planning Board and will 

move forward in the coming months.     

 

 

Financial: Allow for additional development and the associated growth in downtown valuation. 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Vote to approve first reading and  hold a Public Hearing. 
 

 

Previous Meetings and History: Planning Board 4/8/14, CC Workshop April 22, 2014.   

 

 

 

Attachments: Planning Board Staff Report for Downtown Traditional Business District, Spring Street Area 

Future Land Use Map, Spring Street Existing Zoning Map, Spring Street Area Planning Board Recommended 

Zoning. 

Council Workshop Date:  June 2, 2014 Ordinance  04-06022014 

Author:   Eric Cousens, Director of Planning and Permitting 



City of Auburn, Maine 
“Maine’s City of Opportunity” 

___________________________      ______ 
Office of Planning & Permitting 

Page 1 of 3 

 

 
Planning Board Report 

 

 

To:   Auburn Planning Board  

 

From: Eric J. Cousens, Director of Planning and Permitting 

 

Re:  Zoning map amendment in the Spring Street area to make the Central Business II District 

Zoning Boundaries consistent with the Traditional Downtown Business (DTB) District 

boundaries identified in the Future Land Use Map from the Comprehensive Plan Auburn 

Tomorrow.  The zoning change includes the properties located at 178 Court St. (240-264), 184 

Court St. (240-265), 62 Spring St. (240-257), 71 Spring St. (240-263), 88 Spring St. (240-258), 

95 Spring St. (240-262), 75 Pleasant St. (240-253) and 83 Pleasant St. (240-252).   

 

Date: April 1, 2014 

    

I. PROPOSAL 

 

The comprehensive Plan recommends that the Spring Street area zoning be changed from 

General Business Zoning, a highway and vehicle oriented zoning district, to Central Business II 

(CBII), a more traditional downtown business district to allow for a development pattern that is 

consistent with the historic downtown.  Currently, the General Business designation requires 

setbacks of 25 feet at the front and sides of a parcel and 35 feet at the rear of the lot.  Residential 

density is restricted to a very low suburban density, for example, a four unit building would 

currently require a 16,000 square foot lot.  The proposed CBII District would reduce setback 

requirements, allow for increased residential density and mixed use structures.  The current 

zoning designation is inconsistent with the existing development patterns and the 

recommendations of the Comprehensive Plan.   

 

In the surrounding downtown area a majority of our traditional downtown is located within the 

CB district. The Central Business district is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan DTB 

designation and allows for higher density of residential uses, use of shared and public parking for 

new development and reduced building setbacks.  The comprehensive plan recommends that we 

not only allow buildings to be located close to the street to be consistent with existing 

development patterns in this area, but suggests that we require it.  At this time, staff recommends 

that we adjust the zoning boundaries to include the Spring Street area which will allow for 

development to conform to existing development patterns.  A more in depth process, with 

extensive public outreach and participation that considers changing the name and some of the 

standards of the CB district will follow this summer.  This change is a step towards consistency 

with the plan.  Below is the excerpt for the Comprehensive plan describing the Traditional 

Downtown Business District.   

 



Page 2 of 3 

 

 

Traditional Downtown Business District (DTB) 
Objective – Maintain the character and overall development pattern of the historic downtown 
area while allowing for the creative use, reuse and redevelopment of property within the 
district (see Figures 2.3 and 2.4). 
 
Allowed Uses – The following general types of uses should be allowed within the Traditional 
Downtown Business District: 
• small to moderate size retail uses 
• personal and business services 
• restaurants and cafes 
• office uses including business and professional offices 
• hotel, motels, inns, and bed & breakfast establishments 
• fully enclosed light manufacturing 
• community services and facilities 
• recreational facilities 
• a wide range of residential uses including housing on the upper floors of mixed‐use 
buildings and senior housing 
 
Development Standards – The development standards in the Traditional Downtown Business 
District should require that alterations to existing buildings and new buildings maintain the 
established pattern of development, including the placement of the building on the lot. Where 
there is an established pattern with respect to the front setback of buildings, a new or altered 
building should be required to conform to the established pattern. Any area between the front 
of the building and the street should be required to be used for pedestrian purposes, including 
outdoor spaces; vehicle use should be prohibited. Parking should be required to be located at 
the side or rear of the building, but the minimum parking requirement should be reduced, and 
new or redeveloped properties should be allowed to count the use of shared or public parking 
to meet the standard. 
 
Residential development and redevelopment should be allowed at a maximum density of 18‐24 
units per acre, with a provision that small units or units for the elderly be treated as a fraction of 
a unit based on the size of the unit or the number of bedrooms in the unit. The 
reuse/reconfiguration of the space within existing buildings for residential purposes should be 
allowed without consideration of the density/lot size requirements, provided that the building will 
be renovated, be compatible with the neighborhood, and meet the City’s requirements for 
residential units including the provision of appropriate parking and green space. Buildings with 
both residential and nonresidential uses should be allowed to consider shared parking to meet 
their parking requirements. 
 

Below is a list of the parcels affected by the proposed change.  All of the developed parcels are 

nonconforming with respect to one or more dimensional standard including minimum lot size, 

residential density and setback requirements of the General Business zone and would become 

conforming , or at least more conforming, with the proposed map amendment.   
 

Location Owner Name Owner City State Land Use 

178 COURT ST FIRST STATES INVESTORS 5200 LL FORT WORTH TX Pers/Prof Service 

71 SPRING ST HERITAGE COURT INC LEWISTON ME Multi-Family (43) 

95 SPRING ST ANALYTICAL SERVICES INC PORTLAND ME Retail Food 



Page 3 of 3 

 

184 COURT ST FIRST STATES INVESTORS 5200 LL FORT WORTH TX Commercial Parking/ATM 

75 PLEASANT ST VERRILL  BERYL RAE AUBURN ME Multi-Family (8) 

83 PLEASANT ST 83 REALTY LLC AUBURN ME Office 

88 SPRING ST ANALYTICAL SERVICES INC PORTLAND ME Commercial Parking 

62 SPRING ST LYNCH BROTHERS INC AUBURN ME Mixed Use 
 

 It should be noted that 

property and development 

value in this neighborhood is 

higher than average for the 

City and increased 

development that would be 

allowed pursuant to the change 

would help increase that value 

further.  Services can easily be 

provided efficiently to the 

urban core of the City and 

development here should be encouraged as the Comprehensive Plan recommends. Above is a 

chart showing average existing development value per acre including assessed building value for 

the affected properties.  These are current assessed values and as noted above, the change would 

allow for more intensive and pedestrian friendly development that would likely increase values 

over time as we have seen in the existing Central Business District.  

 

II.     PLANNING FINDINGS / CONSIDERATIONS: 

 

Staff  evaluated the proposed rezoning and suggests the following findings:  

 

A. The City’s Future Land Use Map shows the area as “Traditional Downtown Business 

District”.  The Central Business District II zoning designation is consistent with the future 

land use map DTB district and existing zoning along Court Street. 

B. The proposed amendment to the zoning map is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.   

  

III. RECOMMENDATION:   

 

Staff recommends that the Planning Board forward a favorable recommendation to the City Council 

on the proposed zoning map amendment from General Business Zoning District to Central Business 

District for properties located at 178 Court St. (240-264), 184 Court St. (240-265), 62 Spring St. 

(240-257), 71 Spring St. (240-263), 88 Spring St. (240-258), 95 Spring St. (240-262), 75 Pleasant St. 

(240-253) and 83 Pleasant St. (240-252), based on the above findings.   

 

 

 

 

Eric Cousens 

Director of Planning and Permitting 

Location Total Value Total Acres Avg Value Per Acre 

178 COURT ST  952000  0.54  $                1,762,963  

71 SPRING ST  1962300  0.5  $                3,924,600  

95 SPRING ST  2996800  3.47  $                   863,631  

184 COURT ST  114900  0.33  $                   348,182  

75 PLEASANT ST  233600  0.15  $                1,557,333  

83 PLEASANT ST  444300  0.42  $                1,057,857  

88 SPRING ST  120700  0.41  $                   294,390  

62 SPRING ST  495100  0.81  $                   611,235  



Downtown Business District
Limited Business Development District

Downtown Enterprise DistrictCommunity Use

Great Falls Development District

Community Use

High Density Neighborhood Conservation

Main/Elm Mixed Use Corridor Main/Elm Mixed Use Corridor

COURT ST

SP
RI

NG
 ST

HIG
H 

ST

MI
NO

T A
V

PL
EA

SA
NT

 ST

DRUMMOND ST

SOUTH GOFF ST
ME

CH
AN

IC
S R

OW

LIBRARY AV

MA
IN

 ST

TURNER ST

UN
IO

N 
ST

GOFF ST

SOUTH ST

RA
ILR

OA
D 

ST
³

Spring Street Area 
Future Land Use 



GENERAL BUSINESS

DOWNTOWN ENTERPRISE

CENTRAL BUSINESS II

URBAN RESIDENTIAL
CENTRAL BUSINESS III

CENTRAL BUSINESS I

MULTI-FAMILY URBAN

COURT ST

SP
RI

NG
 ST

HIG
H 

ST

MI
NO

T A
V

PL
EA

SA
NT

 ST

DRUMMOND ST

SO
UT

H 
GO

FF
 ST

ME
CH

AN
IC

S R
OW

LIBRARY AV

MA
IN

 ST

TURNER STUN
IO

N 
ST

GOFF ST

SOUTH ST

RA
ILR

OA
D 

ST

DR
UM

MO
ND

 C
T

This map was created by Auburn's GIS
Department. While every effort has 
been made to ensure that these data
are accurate and reliable, the City of
Auburn cannot accept any responsibility
for any errors, omissions, or positional 
accuracy, and therefore, there are no
warranties which accompany this 
product. Users of the information 
displayed on this map are strongly 
cautioned to verify all information 
before making any decisions.

40 0 40 80 12016020
Feet

City of Auburn
Department of
Planning and Permitting
60 Court Street
Auburn, ME  04210
www.auburnmaine.gov
207-333-6601

³

Spring Street Area Zoning



URBAN RESIDENTIAL

DOWNTOWN ENTERPRISE

GENERAL BUSINESS

CENTRAL BUSINESS II

CENTRAL BUSINESS III

CENTRAL BUSINESS I

MULTI-FAMILY URBAN
URBAN RESIDENTIAL

MULTI-FAMILY URBAN

NEIGHBORHOOD BUSINESS

MULTI-FAMILY URBAN

COURT

HIG
H

MI
NO

T

ELM

MA
IN

SP
RI

NG

GOFF PL
EA

SA
NT

LAKE

AUBURN

FOREST

RI
VE

RW
AL

KVINE

HARRIS

DRUMMOND

ACADEMY

TURNER

UN
IO

N

FAIRMOUNT

LIBRARY

JAMES

ME
CH

AN
IC

S

HAMPSHIRE

MI
LL

ER

GREAT FALLS

CL
IFF

MY
RT

LE

TR
OY

HIGHLAND

SOUTH

HASKELL

PROSPECT

RA
ILR

OA
D

BE
AC

ON

LONGLEY MEMORIAL

MA
IN

MI
LL

ER

URBAN RESIDENTIAL

GENERAL BUSINESS

DOWNTOWN ENTERPRISE

CENTRAL BUSINESS III

CENTRAL BUSINESS ICENTRAL BUSINESS II
MULTI-FAMILY URBAN

URBAN RESIDENTIAL

MULTI-FAMILY URBAN

NEIGHBORHOOD BUSINESS

MULTI-FAMILY URBAN

77

2

95

8

67

1

222
222
222

22

222 2

2

2

41

14

60

164277

43

62

49

7

15

1

74

81

112

62

10

16

62

60

292
7

40

209

100

23

19

284

3131
31
31

10
12

282

150

7

1

24

2020

131

20

71

169

165

26

15

320

23

268

28

83

316

88

78

88

256

31

15

178

1

71

87

80

214

112

63

95

40
15

49

323

21

129

17

35

23

11

300

11

13

76

256

8

156

5

27

42

90

35

6

220

33

9

14

31

51

7

115

9

24

88

236

8

110

20

137

31

91

50

30

133

14

29

9

33

74

24

4

54

56

210

52

199

262

17

40

11

350

79

96

37

60

29

64

37

79

32

27

15

75

27

46

36

22

14
18

201

217

7510

19

5

179

108

327

68

15

243

24

223

23

30

22

31

261

57

23

233

28

48

6432

96

17

28

72

49

34

129

46

16

33

60

117

22

48

20

7

244

52

193

247

106

16

138

35

340

142
146

28

32

84

12

12

20

24
99

80
186

71

78

38

37

99

27

25

30

2023

178

250

325

21

47

60

120

67

32

33

81 118
121

58

57

94

138 78

107

85

124

111

158 65

185133

103

3
26

291

31

8

2

9

83

72

11

9

2

34

90

184

6229

95

18

15

29

22

21

39

8

35

27

2915

31

12

17

10
3125

86

271

150

120

11

43

358

270
355

139

338

15

55

43

132

158 143

353

20

88

123

155
147

151

143

121

103

132

127
128

102

20

159

16

120112

1443

9

44

115

53

57

126

8

88

86

92

35

11

154

42

66

21

48 41 2042

86

This map was created by Auburn's GIS
Department. While every effort has 
been made to ensure that these data
are accurate and reliable, the City of
Auburn cannot accept any responsibility
for any errors, omissions, or positional 
accuracy, and therefore, there are no
warranties which accompany this 
product. Users of the information 
displayed on this map are strongly 
cautioned to verify all information 
before making any decisions.

90 0 90 180 270 36045
Feet

City of Auburn
Department of
Planning and Permitting
60 Court Street
Auburn, ME  04210
www.auburnmaine.gov
207-333-6601³ Spring Street Area Proposed Zoning

Rev: 4/14/14  DMG

Legend
Spring St Area Proposed Zoning
       Zoning Districts

AG - Agriculture and Resource Protection
CBD I - Central Business District I
CBD II - Central Business District II
CBD III - Central Business District III
DE - Downtown Enterprise
GB - General Business
GB II - General Business II
ID - Industrial
LDCR - Low Density Country Residential
MFS - Multi-Family Suburban
MFU - Multi-Family Urban
NB - Neighborhood Business
RR - Rural Residential
SR - Suburban Residential
UR - Urban Residential
Properties Proposed for Re-zoning



LEGAL NOTICE 

 

City of Auburn 

 
 

 

The Auburn City Council will hold a Public Hearing on Monday, June 2, 2014 at 7:00 

PM in the City Council Chambers of Auburn Hall, 60 Court Street, Auburn, Maine. The 

following proposals will be heard: 

 

A proposed Zoning Map Amendment from General Business Zoning District to Central 

Business District for properties located at 178 Court St. (240-264), 184 Court St. (240-

265), 62 Spring St. (240-257), 71 Spring St. (240-263), 88 Spring St. (240-258), 95 

Spring St. (240-262), 75 Pleasant St. (240-253) and 83 Pleasant St. (240-252). 

 

A proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOMA-1180-2013) to allow the 

transfer of residential development rights for properties contained in the Low Density 

County Residential and Low Density Rural Residential Zoning Districts, to an 

Agricultural and Resource Protection Zoning District within the same parcel as a Special 

Exception and Site Plan Review.   

 

 

For more information contact Douglas Greene @ 333-6601 ext. 1156 or 

dgreene@auburnmaine.gov.   

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

To be placed in the Lewiston Sun Journal on Friday, May 23, 2014 and Monday, 

May 26, 2014. 

mailto:dgreene@auburnmaine.gov


Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

           

ORDINANCE  04-06022014 

 

ORDERED, that the City of Auburn zoning map in the area shown on the attached map 

including the parcels outlined in pink be amended from the General Business Zoning District to 

be included in the Central Business II Zoning District. The change includes Parcels at 184 Court 

(PID # 240-267), 178 Court (PID #240-264), 62 Spring Street (PID #240-257), 75 Pleasant 

Street (PID #240-253), 83 Pleasant Street (PID #240-252), 71 Spring Street (PID #240-263),  

99 Pleasant Street (PID #240-251), 95 Spring Street (PID #240-262), 88 Spring Street (PID 

#240-258), 15 Drummond Court (PID #230-069), 88 Drummond Street (PID #230-075-001), 86 

Drummond Street (PID # 230-075), Parcel # 230-074, 121 Spring Street (PID #230-073), 123 

Spring Street (PID #230-072), 127 Spring Street (PID # 230-071), 133 Spring Street (PID #230-

070), 137 Spring Street (PID #233-069-001), and Parcel # 230-068 and where the parcel abuts a 

street or Railroad it shall extend to the centerline of the right-of-way.   
 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



URBAN RESIDENTIAL

DOWNTOWN ENTERPRISE

GENERAL BUSINESS

CENTRAL BUSINESS II

CENTRAL BUSINESS III

CENTRAL BUSINESS I

MULTI-FAMILY URBAN
URBAN RESIDENTIAL

MULTI-FAMILY URBAN

NEIGHBORHOOD BUSINESS

MULTI-FAMILY URBAN

COURT

HIG
H

MI
NO

T

ELM

MA
IN

SP
RI

NG

GOFF PL
EA

SA
NT

LAKE

AUBURN

FOREST

RI
VE

RW
AL

KVINE

HARRIS

DRUMMOND

ACADEMY

TURNER

UN
IO

N

FAIRMOUNT

LIBRARY

JAMES

ME
CH

AN
IC

S

HAMPSHIRE

MI
LL

ER

GREAT FALLS

CL
IFF

MY
RT

LE

TR
OY

HIGHLAND

SOUTH

HASKELL

PROSPECT

RA
ILR

OA
D

BE
AC

ON

LONGLEY MEMORIAL

MA
IN

MI
LL

ER

URBAN RESIDENTIAL

GENERAL BUSINESS

DOWNTOWN ENTERPRISE

CENTRAL BUSINESS III

CENTRAL BUSINESS ICENTRAL BUSINESS II
MULTI-FAMILY URBAN

URBAN RESIDENTIAL

MULTI-FAMILY URBAN

NEIGHBORHOOD BUSINESS

MULTI-FAMILY URBAN

77

2

95

8

67

1

222
222
222

22

222 2

2

2

41

14

60

164277

43

62

49

7

15

1

74

81

112

62

10

16

62

60

292
7

40

209

100

23

19

284

3131
31
31

10
12

282

150

7

1

24

2020

131

20

71

169

165

26

15

320

23

268

28

83

316

88

78

88

256

31

15

178

1

71

87

80

214

112

63

95

40
15

49

323

21

129

17

35

23

11

300

11

13

76

256

8

156

5

27

42

90

35

6

220

33

9

14

31

51

7

115

9

24

88

236

8

110

20

137

31

91

50

30

133

14

29

9

33

74

24

4

54

56

210

52

199

262

17

40

11

350

79

96

37

60

29

64

37

79

32

27

15

75

27

46

36

22

14
18

201

217

7510

19

5

179

108

327

68

15

243

24

223

23

30

22

31

261

57

23

233

28

48

6432

96

17

28

72

49

34

129

46

16

33

60

117

22

48

20

7

244

52

193

247

106

16

138

35

340

142
146

28

32

84

12

12

20

24
99

80
186

71

78

38

37

99

27

25

30

2023

178

250

325

21

47

60

120

67

32

33

81 118
121

58

57

94

138 78

107

85

124

111

158 65

185133

103

3
26

291

31

8

2

9

83

72

11

9

2

34

90

184

6229

95

18

15

29

22

21

39

8

35

27

2915

31

12

17

10
3125

86

271

150

120

11

43

358

270
355

139

338

15

55

43

132

158 143

353

20

88

123

155
147

151

143

121

103

132

127
128

102

20

159

16

120112

1443

9

44

115

53

57

126

8

88

86

92

35

11

154

42

66

21

48 41 2042

86

This map was created by Auburn's GIS
Department. While every effort has 
been made to ensure that these data
are accurate and reliable, the City of
Auburn cannot accept any responsibility
for any errors, omissions, or positional 
accuracy, and therefore, there are no
warranties which accompany this 
product. Users of the information 
displayed on this map are strongly 
cautioned to verify all information 
before making any decisions.

90 0 90 180 270 36045
Feet

City of Auburn
Department of
Planning and Permitting
60 Court Street
Auburn, ME  04210
www.auburnmaine.gov
207-333-6601³ Spring Street Area Proposed Zoning

Rev: 4/14/14  DMG

Legend
Spring St Area Proposed Zoning
       Zoning Districts

AG - Agriculture and Resource Protection
CBD I - Central Business District I
CBD II - Central Business District II
CBD III - Central Business District III
DE - Downtown Enterprise
GB - General Business
GB II - General Business II
ID - Industrial
LDCR - Low Density Country Residential
MFS - Multi-Family Suburban
MFU - Multi-Family Urban
NB - Neighborhood Business
RR - Rural Residential
SR - Suburban Residential
UR - Urban Residential
Properties Proposed for Re-zoning



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: City Council vote in support of a Community Fundraising Campaign to acquire the historic 1915 Bells 

of St. Louis Church.   

 

Information: The Community Fundraising Campaign will be administered by the City of Auburn’s Economic 

Development Dept. with a goal of raising $12,000.  

 

Financial: Municipal financial impact is in staff administrative time involved with the Community Fundraising 

Campaign.    

 

Action Requested at this Meeting:  Recommend passage 

 

Previous Meetings and History: N/A  

Council Meeting Date:  June 2, 2014 Resolve 07-06022014 

Author:   Alan Manoian, Economic Development Assistant  



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

Attachments:  

Resolve 07-06022014 



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

RESOLVE 07-06022014 

 

RESOLVED, that the Auburn City Council, votes in support of the Community Fundraising 

Campaign to acquire the historic 1915 Bells of St. Louis Church.  
      



City Council 

Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

 

  Council Meeting Date: June 2, 2014  

 

   

 

Subject: Executive Session  

 

Information: Discussion regarding economic development, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C)  

 

 
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive 

session.  Executive sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential 

until they become a matter of public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion 

must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be 

scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The 

only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 

405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 

 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, 

disciplining, resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the 

investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's 

reputation or the individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 

(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that 

person be conducted in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  

(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be 

present. 

This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  

 

B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the 

cost of whose education is paid from public funds, as long as:  

(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an 

executive session if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  

 

C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property 

or interests therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would 

prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 

D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named 

before the body or agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees 

may be open to the public if both parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 

E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or 

contemplated litigation, settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant 

to the code of professional responsibility clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place 

the State, municipality or other public agency or person at a substantial disadvantage;  

 

F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public 

to those records is prohibited by statute; 

 

G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment 

purposes; consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content 

of an examination; and review of examinations with the person examined; and  

 

H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 

4452, subsection 1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that 

pending enforcement matter.  


	0  Agenda 06-02-2014
	1  Workshop Info Sheet LAEGC (2)
	1a  Economic Development Services for LAEGC-Final Report
	2  Workshop Info Sheet GHHI
	2a  Letter to Auburn
	2b  GHHI info sheet
	2c  Compact_GHHI-LA_City_final
	2d  Healthy Homes Happy Families Volume 1 Issue 1
	2e  Order GHHI 5-2014
	3  Agenda Info Sheet CIP 060214
	3a  Final CIP to Council Workshop on 060214
	FY 15 Prioritized Bonds

	3a  FY15 CIP MDOT Match
	4  Workshop Info Sheet Leg Policy Committee
	4a  LPC info
	4b  Order 42-06022014 MMA Legislative Comm
	5  Agenda Info Sheet TARDIF Forfeiture
	5a  TARDIF  forfeiture MEMO
	5b  ORDER 43-06022014 TARDIF forfeiture
	6  Minutes 5-19-2014
	6a  EMS DC Impact on fy15 budget
	JD -- Deputy Fire Chief Revised 12-1-10 (EMS).pdf
	VI. Peripheral Duties


	6b  Mass Gathering - Notification to Council
	6c  2014_Special_Event-Mass_Gathering_Application-signed
	6d  2014_GFP_Auburn map
	7  Revised Agenda Info Sheet Ag Text Amd 6-2-14
	7a  Ag Text Amendment Findings for the Decision
	7b  Proposed Study of the Agricultural and Resource Protection Zone 5-21-14
	7c  City Council Public Hearing Legal Notice 6 2 14
	7d  Ordinance 03-05192014 Ag Zone Text Amd
	8  appropriation resolve agenda info sheet2
	8a  Fiscal Year 2015 Council proposed budget summary as of 051914
	new summary
	Exp Summary
	Revenue

	8b  DRAFTAnnual Appropriation Resolve 2014-15 w amendments for 2nd reading
	9  Agenda Infor Sheet The Penalty Box
	9a  The Penalty Box State Liquor
	9bThe Penalty Box FSE Class I
	9c  Liquor License THE PENALTY BOX New Public Hearing Notice
	9d  Order Penalty Box Liquor License
	11  Agenda Info Sheet Spring Street Area Zoning 6 2 14
	11a  Planning Board Staff Report for Downtown Traditional Business District
	11b  Spring Street Area Future Land Use Map
	11c  Spring Street Existing Zoning Map
	11d  Spring Street Area Planning Board Recommended Zoning
	11e  City Council Public Hearing Legal Notice 6 2 14
	11f  Ordinance 04-06022014 Spring Street Zoning amendment
	11g  Ordinance 04-06022014 attachment Spring Street Area Planning Board Recommended Zoning
	12  Agenda Info Sheet - Bells of St  Louis Council Support Fundraising
	12a  Resolve 07-06022014 Bells of St  Louis Church Community Fundraising Campaign (2)
	13  Executive Session info sheet Economic Development



